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FOREWORD

I am pleased to introduce the Scottish Prison Service’s
(SPS) Annual Report for 2014-15. The past year has seen
considerable work going into developing and refining the
Vision that we have for the Scottish Prison Service. Our
focus has been on ensuring we have the structures, systems
and people in place to ensure we have the capacity and
capability to plan, and deliver the programme of change
required for us to achieve our Vision.
We have developed a new business
planning process and the past year has
seen the publication of the Annual
Delivery Plan which links operational
delivery to the priorities of the
organisation.

with specialised groups such as young
people, women and sex offenders have
the necessary skills and qualifications to
carry those tasks out as effectively as
possible.
2014-15 saw the further development
of the role of our Throughcare Support
Officers and I am happy to report that we
now have a dedicated cohort of 41 staff
members extending their duties to
working with prisoners in the community
at a number of establishments across
Scotland.

In January of this year the new Cabinet
Secretary for Justice announced that the
proposed prison for women at Inverclyde
should not proceed and instead a wide
ranging consultation exercise was
launched about how we manage those
women who come into contact with the
Criminal Justice System. The Scottish
Prison Service played a full part in those
consultations and we look forward to
announcements coming from the Cabinet
Secretary later this year about the future
direction of travel for women and working
with partners to deliver a custodial estate
that best meets the needs of those
women.

I am delighted to say that the staff of the
Scottish Prison Service continue to show
their enthusiasm and their commitment
to making our Vision a reality. I have been
tremendously impressed by the
commitment of our staff and our partners
to making a real difference to those who
are in custody in Scotland today.

The past year also saw the launch of our
Vision for Young People in Custody which
aims to ensure that the time a young
person spends in our care can be used
to enable them to prepare for a positive
future in the wider community. It is also
part of our broader plan to ensure that, as
part of our People Strategy, staff working

Colin McConnell
Chief Executive, SPS
26 June 2015
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“

...THE STAFF OF THE SCOTTISH
PRISON SERVICE CONTINUE TO
SHOW THEIR ENTHUSIASM AND
THEIR COMMITMENT TO MAKING
OUR VISION A REALITY.”
FOREWORD
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SCOTTISH PRISON SERVICE BOARD 2014-15

The Chief Executive chairs an internal Board which
comprises Executive Directors and independent
Non‑Executive Directors (appointed by Scottish Ministers
for their expertise) who collectively act in an advisory
capacity. The SPS Board’s role is to support the Chief
Executive in providing leadership and in directing and
controlling the organisation in the public interest.
The Chief Executive establishes the
strategic direction of SPS in conjunction
with the Scottish Government; ensures
public accountability; assures probity/
integrity; allocates resources and
monitors performance; reviews and
manages risks facing the SPS and
develops capability and performance
while ensuring sound corporate
governance.
In the financial year 2014-15, the Board
met seven times. Minutes of SPS Board
meetings are published on the SPS
website.

SCOTTISH PRISON SERVICE BOARD

Colin McConnell
Chief Executive

Eric Murch
Director of Operations

Catherine Topley
Director of Corporate Services

Ian Davidson
Director of Strategy &
Innovation

Allan Burns CBE
Non-Executive Director
to 30 April 2014

Jane Martin
Non-Executive Director
to 19 September 2014

Sue Matheson OBE
Non-Executive Director
to 31 October 2014

Harry McGuigan
Non-Executive Director
to 31 December 2014

Zoe van Zwanenberg
Non-Executive Director

Sue Browell
Non-Executive Director
from 21 January 2015

Hugh Monro
Non-Executive Director
from 21 January 2015

Alex Macmillan
Non-Executive Director
from 25 March 2015

SPS operates a three directorate model
headed by Eric Murch, Director of
Operations, Catherine Topley, Director
of Corporate Services and Ian Davidson,
Director of Strategy and Innovation.
The Risk Monitoring and Audit
Committee (RMAC) supports the Chief
Executive and the Board by advising
on the effectiveness of SPS corporate
governance arrangements including
risk management, performance
management, systems of internal
control and assurance arrangements.
The committee meets on a quarterly
basis and is chaired by John Graham, an
independent member of the committee.
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY – STRATEGIC REPORT

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with a
direction given by Scottish Ministers in accordance with
Article 19(4) of the Public Finance and Accountability
(Scotland) Act 2000. The direction is reproduced as an
appendix to the accounts.
History
The Scottish Prison Service (SPS) is an
agency of the Scottish Government and
was established in April 1993. The SPS
Framework Document sets out the policy
and resources framework set by Scottish
Ministers within which the SPS operates.
As an Executive Agency, the SPS is
funded by the Scottish Government.
In line with the Framework Document,
the SPS sets out its business objectives
in the three-year Corporate Plan for the
period 2014-17 and an Annual Delivery
Plan which is published in the spring
of each year. The current Corporate
and Delivery Plans are driven by the
strategic priorities identified in the
SPS Organisational Review ‘Unlocking
Potential – Transforming Lives’ which
was published in 2013.

Our Principal Activities
The SPS is a public service-led agency
which is legally required to deliver
custodial and rehabilitation services for
those sent to it by the courts. Appendix 3
details the average number of individuals
held in custody during 2014-15.
The SPS continues to deliver a range of
operational services that contribute to
the strategic outcomes, objectives and
policies of the Scottish Government.

MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY

Our principle objective is to contribute
to making “Scotland Safer by Protecting
the Public and Reducing Reoffending”.
The SPS aims to achieve this by ensuring
delivery of secure custody, safe and
ordered prisons, decent standards of
care and opportunities for those citizens
in our care to develop in a way that help
them reintegrate into the community on
release.
To support this objective, SPS agrees
a service framework with each public
sector prison and manages private
sector providers of prisons and custodial
services under contract arrangements.
Details of these arrangements are
available on the SPS website
www.sps.gov.uk
The SPS also manages, on behalf of
multi-agency justice partners, the
national contract for the provision of
court custody and prisoner escorting
and routinely works and cooperates with
statutory and other partners to deliver
improved Justice Outcomes.

At 1 April 2014 there were 13 publicly
managed prisons, two privately managed
prisons (HMP Kilmarnock and HMP
Addiewell) and a provider of Court
Custody and Prisoner Escorting Services.
Appendix 1 shows the location of the
prisons.

Vision, Mission and Strategic
Priorities of the SPS
Following the comprehensive review of
the SPS in 2013, the Service’s Strategic
Priorities have been the basis of the
Corporate Plan and Annual Delivery
Plans (ADP). These have identified key
deliverables which aim to drive SPS
forward to achieving its Vision.
The Scottish Prison Service (SPS) has
a Vision of:

Helping to build a safer
Scotland – Unlocking Potential
– Transforming Lives.
The Mission of the SPS is:

Providing services to help
to transform the lives of the
people in our care so they
can fulfil their potential and
become responsible citizens.

“

FOLLOWING THE COMPREHENSIVE
REVIEW OF THE SPS IN 2013, THE
SERVICE’S STRATEGIC PRIORITIES
HAVE BEEN THE BASIS OF THE
CORPORATE PLAN AND ANNUAL
DELIVERY PLANS...”
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In delivering our Vision and Mission our
Operating Task is:

>

Openness – we work with others to
achieve the best outcomes;

Helping to protect the public and reduce
reoffending through the delivery of
safe and secure custodial services
that empower the offender to take
responsibility to fulfil their potential.

>

Courage – we have the courage to care
regardless of circumstances; and

>

Humility – we cannot do this on our
own, we recognise we can learn from
others.

We deliver this through:
Custody – Managing safe and secure
custodial environments;
Order – Providing stability and order that
helps offenders to transform their lives;
Care – Supporting wellbeing and treating
with respect and humanity all in our care;
and
Opportunity – providing opportunities
which develop the potential of our staff,
our partnerships and the people in our
care.

Our Strategic Priorities

2. Investing in SPS people;
3. Delivering effective and efficient
services;
4. Delivering a collaborative outcome
focus;
5. Developing a person-centred, assetbased approach;

The Vision and Mission provide a driving
ambition and clarity of direction which we
have built on within the last year to set
up the structures and processes which
we can now move to implement. Our
commitment remains to:

7. Promoting public confidence in SPS.

>

Develop a person-centred, assetbased approach to unlock the potential
of our people and those in our care;

>

Encourage and support our staff and
those in our care to be all they can be;

>

Together with partners strengthen
links into communities and support
reintegration on release; and

>

Professionalise and invest in SPS staff
as effective change agents.

Our core values are the foundation of
how we behave and are central to our
organisation relating to our commitment
to respecting human rights. We believe
that the keys to delivering our Mission are:
>

Belief – we believe that people can
change;

>

Respect – we have proper regard
for individuals, their needs and their
human rights;

>

Integrity – we apply high ethical, moral
and professional standards;

MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY

We live our lives safe from crime,
disorder and danger;

>

We have strong, resilient and
supportive communities where people
take responsibility for their own
actions and how they affect others;
and

>

Our public services are high quality,
continually improving, efficient and
responsive to local people’s needs.

1. Embedding the New Vision;

6. Becoming a learning organisation; and

View ourselves as part of the ‘whole
system’;

>

To deliver the Vision and Mission, SPS
has seven strategic priorities:

Our Commitment and Values

>

The National Performance Framework
and the agenda for public services reform
outlined in the Commission on the Future
Delivery of Public Services underpin what
we do. Success in achieving our Vision will
contribute very directly to the following
National Outcomes:

For the 2015-16 Annual Delivery
Plan these priorities have defined
outcomes against which performance
can be reviewed and reported on. This
Performance Framework, showing
the links to the Justice Outcomes
and National Outcomes, is shown in
Appendix 8.

Our Contribution to National
Outcomes
The SPS contributes to the Scotland
Performs the Strategic Objectives of
Safer and Stronger Communities, and the
National Outcomes through deliverables
identified within the Corporate and
Annual Delivery plans. These deliverables
have been developed under key
themes in each of the strategic priority
outcomes. This means that our ability
to set out Key Performance Measures
has improved and will be developed
further to achieve a comprehensive and
robust Performance Framework which
captures both Operational Performance
Indicators (operational results) and
Corporate Performance Measures
(balanced scorecard approach). The
current structure is shown in Appendix 8,
Performance Framework and Operational
Performance Indicators.

These National Outcomes are reflected
in the Strategy for Justice in Scotland.
We have a strong lead role to play in the
delivery of the Vision of this strategy
to contribute positively to a flourishing
Scotland, helping to create an inclusive
and respectful society in which all
people and communities live in safety
and security. A society where individual
and collective rights are supported and
disputes are resolved fairly and swiftly.

Stakeholder Engagement
We have engaged and will continue
to engage with stakeholders locally,
nationally and internationally, and work
closely with a wide range of bodies to help
shape our services. Our partners include:

Summary of Performance –
Overall
The population numbers have fallen
during the year from 7,781 on 1 April 2014
to 7,630 on 31 March 2015. The peak
number of individuals in our care was
7,921 on 17 July 2014 (figures exclude
Home Detention Curfew). The average
daily population figures are shown in
Appendix 3. As at 31 March 2015, 301
individuals under our care were on
Home Detention Curfew (HDC) licence
arrangements. During 2014-15 an average

of 350 individuals were on HDC compared
to an average of 364 in 2013-14. This is
a measure to improve the management
and progression of individuals by allowing
eligible people who present a low risk of
reoffending, to be released on licence
between two weeks and six months
early. The management of the electronic
monitoring service which supports the
operation of HDC is provided under
contract arrangements by a third party
and is the responsibility of the Scottish
Government. There is a key focus on
developing throughcare and opportunities

in order to empower those in our care to
become responsible citizens. The increase
in vocational and employment related
qualifications is encouraging.
Maintaining highly effective services
continues to be central to the activity
of SPS. The Operational Performance
continues to be good, however there are
areas which have required consideration
and review. Table 1 provides an overview
of Operational Performance Indicator
results.

Table 1 Operational Performance – Combined Figures for all Prisons
Operational Performance Indicator Results*

2014-15

2013-14
Restated***

1a

Escapes: Extreme risk

0

0

1b

Escapes: other

1

0

2a

Serious Prisoner on Staff Assaults

9

2

2b

Prisoner on Staff Assaults – Minor and No Injury

161

162

2c

Serious Prisoner on Prisoner Assaults

66

82

2d

Prisoner on Prisoner Assaults – Minor and No Injury

1,767

1,822

3a

Purposeful Activity Hours

7,092,767

6,909,481

3b

Average Purposeful Activity Hours per week per Convicted Prisoner

22

22

4a

% Education Classes Spent Delivering Literacy

34

36

4b

% Education Classes Spent Delivering Numeracy

16.3

17

5a

Vocational and Employment-Related Qualifications

18,011

14,862

5b

Work Skills Qualifications at level 5 or above

2,333

1,858

6

Employability Prospects Increased

n/a

n/a

7

% Reduced Substance Abuse

41

52

8

% ICM Case Conferences Held with CJSW in Attendance

88.2

91.4

>

Community Justice Authorities

>

Community Planning Partnerships

>

Education Scotland

>

Employers

>

Local Authorities

>

NHS

9

Average Annual Cost Per Prisoner Place**

34,102

33,153

>

Police

10

Reducing Carbon Emissions

45,409

46,701

>

Scottish Government

>

Skills Development Scotland

>

Third Sector

>

Universities

* An explanation of Operational Performance Indicators is shown at Appendix 8b.
** The average cost per prisoner place excludes capital charges, exceptional payments and the cost of the Court Custody and Prisoner Escort Contract.
SPS publishes cost and performance information on the latter separately on its website.
*** 2013-14 figures have been restated due to information for private prisons being omitted in error.
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Following the publication of the Corporate
Plan and Annual Delivery Plan 2014-15,
our focus has been on ensuring we have
the structures, systems, and people in
place to ensure that we have the capacity
and capability to plan and deliver the
programme of change required. This focus
has been essential in allowing us to build
strong foundations which will allow us to
move from planning to delivery.
Overall delivery within SPS is progressing
very well. Our analysis of the strategic
objectives, which are set out as key
deliverables through the medium of our
ADP, shows that we are delivering on the
targets set and taking positive steps in
working to achieve the Corporate Plan. We
have shown strong delivery on our core
operational business and the development
of key strategies which will set our future
direction; the highlights of delivery against
the strategic priorities are detailed in the
next section.
Over 2014-15 SPS continued to progress
the Equality Outcomes we set in 2013.
In April 2015, in compliance with our
obligations under the Equality Act 2010,
we published reports to show: the
progress we have made over the last two
years to integrate and embed equality
into our day-to-day functions so that it
is a core component of everything we do
(‘mainstreaming’); the progress we have
made against our Equality Outcomes;
our gender pay gap information; and how
we have gathered and used employee
equality information to meet the other
Public Sector Equality Duties. The full
reports can be accessed on our website.
We have been an active member of the
Justice Board Equality and Diversity
Subgroup and engaged with 33 external
organisations to identify action that
justice organisations could take to tackle
underrepresentation in our workforces.
We are also represented on the Criminal
Justice Disability Project Group and
are committed to improving access to
justice for disabled people, for example
by conducting site access audits of all
SPS estates and improving inclusive and
accessible communications.

MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY
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Offenders are our principal client group
and they are often those within our
society that already experience some of
the worst inequalities in terms of poor
levels of health and poor educational
attainment. To deliver the key equality
messages from our 2013 Organisational
Review there has been an emphasis
placed on these low levels of attainment
in reviewing our Strategy for Women, our
Vision for Young People in Custody and
work with the Scottish Government and
key partners such as the NHS.
In summer 2014 we redesigned our
equality impact assessment process
to incorporate consideration of human
rights, social and economic disadvantage,
children and young people. We created a
new Equality and Human Rights Impact
Assessment template and developed
and delivered training on the new
process to almost 200 staff including
specific sessions for senior managers.
We have embedded impact assessments
into project management and policy
development processes. Our internal
Audit and Assurance team conducted
reviews of the equality and diversity
arrangements at four establishments, with
three (HMP Cornton Vale, HMP Dumfries
and HMP Greenock) providing reasonable
assurance and HMP Edinburgh providing
substantial assurance. An audit was also
conducted of the Corporate Equality
and Diversity position and this provided
reasonable assurance.

Summary of Performance –
Strategic Priorities

Investing in SPS People

The SPS Organisational Review, Unlocking
Potential – Transforming Lives, identified
seven strategic priorities. Our Corporate
Plan and Annual Delivery Plan are
organised against these priorities. The
following section summarises progress
in delivery against the priorities.

Work commenced in early 2014 to lay
the foundations of the SPS People
Strategy following the recommendations
made in the Organisational Review. A
People Strategy team was formed with
specific remit to explore the four People
Strategy themes – Professionalisation,
Leadership, Culture and HR Effectiveness.
The People Strategy was launched at
the 2014 staff conference, outlining the
strategic principles that would govern the
priorities around people development and
enablement in the SPS.

Embedding the Vision
With a focus on ensuring we have the
structures, systems, and people in place
to ensure that we have the capacity
and capability to plan, and deliver the
programme of change required, the
following directorate structure is now
in place:
>

The Office of the Chief Executive
– Performance, Risk Management
and Audit, Compliance and Legal
Services, Financial Policy and Services,
Communications and Branding, and
Corporate Change.

>

Directorate of Strategy and
Innovation – Policy Development
and Commissioning, Development of
Offender Services and Interventions,
Research, Strategy and Policy, and
Corporate Planning and Performance.

>

The Freedom of Information (Scotland)
Act 2002 entitles anyone who requests
information from the SPS to receive it,
>
subject to certain defined exemptions.
The SPS seeks to act in the spirit of
openness, to provide information (unless
exempt) within 20 working days, to provide
advice and assistance to applicants, and to
proactively publish information under its
Publication Scheme.
A focus within the next year on the
redevelopment of our Performance
Framework will look to frame our
performance more accurately through
a balanced scorecard approach which
considers both operational and strategic
performance. Our current model of
performance is shown in Appendix 8a.

Directorate of Operations –
Governors in Charge of Operational
Delivery, Public Protection and
Significant Case Reviews, Private
Prisons, Prison Services, and Planning
and Contracts.
Directorate of Corporate Services
– Human Resource Management
and Organisational Development,
Procurement Policy and Services,
Information Technology, Information
Systems and Assurance, and
Estates Strategy, Management and
Development.

New approaches to governance are
being developed. A short life governance
review was commissioned in March 2015
and there is a clear project management
structure which was implemented on
1 March 2015 and co-ordinated by the
Corporate Change Unit. To ensure a clear
focus on strategy and policy development
a Strategic Development Board was
established on 27 February 2014.

People Strategy

Working with over 100 staff members
across the organisation, eight Think
Tanks were formed to create spaces for
innovative thinking, encouraging staff to
explore some of the challenges facing
the organisation. The topics were varied
and included organisational structures,
staff behaviours and competencies, SPS
culture and our processes. Discussions
from these Think Tanks progressed into
informed, practical ideas on the kind
of changes that would better enable
individuals and the organisation to
achieve its overall ambitions. Think Tank
outputs have informed and influenced
corporate considerations around
some key deliverables (outlined in the
SPS Corporate Plan 2015-17). These
efforts begin to lay the foundations for
future people development, including a
Leadership Ethos for SPS and Behaviour
Competency Framework – both of which
will provide important terms of reference
for how the SPS continues to invest in its
staff and influence practical activities such
as Performance Management.
Beyond Think Tanks, the People Strategy
principles of ensuring we have the
right people, with the right skills, in the
right place at the right time, have also
prompted a new and structured approach
to workforce planning. In 2014-15, the
SPS College Resourcing team undertook
work to better inform SPS of the projected
requirements for Operational Pay
Bands C, D and E, thereby ensuring SPS
recruitment and training requirements
were aligned and that we could better
support staffing across establishments.
The SPS has also been exploring what
continuing professional development
looks like in a changing operational
landscape.

Employee Reward and Relations
In August 2014 the Working Together
Review: Progressive Workplace Policies
in Scotland report was published. This
followed an independent review of
workplace policies involving trade unions,
businesses and academics working
together with the Scottish Government
to create better working environments.
The report acknowledged 11 years of
successful partnership working in SPS
and stated the “…Partnership Agreement
adopted by management and the trade
unions provides the backbone to fair
industrial relations in the sector, both
in helping achieve good standards of
decision-making and in handling divergent
views as they emerge.”
Employee engagement levels are
measured through an independent annual
survey and benchmarked against other
areas of the civil service. The 2014 SPS
results were broadly similar to 2013, and
employee engagement levels matched
the civil service average.

Delivering Effective and
Efficient Services

preparations to re-procure these services.
This analysis suggests that formal literacy
and numeracy provision is unpopular
with individuals and establishments are
increasingly countering this by moving to a
blended learning model where literacy and
numeracy is embedded within wider skills
and work activity.
As a proxy measure of reduced substance
misuse SPS is now using Addiction
Prevalence Testing (APT) data as an
indication of changes in substance
misuse behaviour. This involves samples
of individuals in our care being tested
annually on reception and liberation to
assess change in use across a range
of illegal substances. The measure
was created following the removal of
mandatory drug testing within prisons.
SPS and the NHS are reasonably confident
that good progress is made within
prisons in reducing substance misuse
and dependency. This includes the
development of public health approaches
such as the distribution of Naloxone
on release, which recognises growing
concerns about potential relapse and the
risks associated with reduced tolerance
levels.

Operational Performance

The operational performance indicators
also have a proxy indicator for the
effectiveness of joint work with Criminal
Justice Social Work (CJSW) in the case
management of long-term sentenced
individuals who are subject to enhanced
integrated case management. This
is central to managing individuals
progression, preparation for release
and reintegration into the community.
Improved delivery of purposeful activity is
Establishments are working closely with
a key strategic priority for SPS. Taking the
CJSW to ensure that attendance levels
figures in Table 1 at face value they seem
remain as high as possible and that
to represent a low level of purposeful
video conferencing can be used as an
activity. However it is clear that the figures
alternative.
do not capture a substantial volume of
positive and capacity building interactions The SPS engages with a number of
between individuals in our care and
auditing processes both internally and
between them and staff members. A
externally. The SPS Risk Monitoring and
substantial review of Purposeful Activity
Audit Committee (RMAC) scrutinises
is now underway, which will consider the
the effectiveness of SPS corporate
planning, timetabling and recording of
governance arrangements. In 2014–15,
activities as well as the range and quality
131 audits were carried out with the
of activities.
majority being assessed at the levels of
As shown in Table 1, the operational
performance indicators demonstrate that
prisons are safe places to live and work.
Prisons continually work to reduce assault
rates and to prevent violent behaviour
where possible. In addition to this the
current corporate SPS Antibullying
Strategy is under review.

Whilst a detailed review of embedded
literacy and numeracy skills being
provided across education and training
opportunities has yet to be completed,
a more general quality assurance
assessment has been undertaken of
learning and skills provision as part of

reasonable and substantial assurance.

The Women’s Strategy
In January 2015, Michael Matheson,
Cabinet Secretary for Justice announced
that the proposal for a prison for women
in Inverclyde should not proceed.
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Following on from the announcement,
the Scottish Government organised
consultation events with community
partners and stakeholders in the eight
Community Justice Authority (CJA) areas
and also with women offenders, their
families and staff. The SPS has actively
participated in this consultation to
support the broad discussion about the
way ahead on this agenda.
The SPS Strategy for the Management
of Women in Custody developed during
the course of 2014 will continue to
inform this discussion to contribute to
implementation of wider strategy once
there is an agreed Scottish Government
approach.

Strategy for Young People in Custody
The SPS Vision for Young People in
Custody was launched in HMYOI Polmont
in December 2014 with the aim of
using the time a young person spends
in custody to enable them to prepare
for a positive future. It will apply to all
young people in custody aged 16-21,
young men and young women, whether
on remand or sentenced. The vision is
based upon what we know about young
people’s development and factors which
can reduce the impact of exclusion and
support them in their desistance from
offending. It places the young person at
the centre of assessment, planning and
support to ensure that they have access
to tailored opportunities for learning and
development and planned support in
the community on liberation. The Vision
recognises the crucial role of staff in
engaging with young people, motivating
them and helping them to move on to a
positive future.
Quality indicators are being developed
as a key part of the implementation of
this Vision. These will set out expected
standards for all aspects of a young
person’s experience of custody. Work
has also begun to consider future
arrangements for the learning and
professional development of staff who
work with young people in custody
through the remit of the People Strategy.

Purposeful Activity Review (PAR)
The results of the Review of Purposeful
Activity and Recommendations were
published on SPS website in August 2014.
Work is progressing well to deliver the
recommendations which are themed into
18 core workstreams. In early February
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2015 senior leaders from across Scotland
attended a stakeholder event and were
invited to engage in and influence the work
of each workstream. Each workstream and
its interdependencies are framed around
the SPS Strategic Objectives with a
strong focus on transformational change.
Progress is positive, and once complete
the SPS will have delivered significantly
on changing the way SPS works with
individuals in our care. This is a significant
step forward in working to achieve our
strategic priorities and transformational
change.
The PAR has developed a range of
products linked to a wide range of change
projects and consultations. There has
been a focus on changing structures to
ensure that the definition of purposeful
activity is fit for purpose and meaningful.
Guidance is also under development
to ensure structure, standards and
governance.
The progress on positive citizenship
has sought to build engagement in a
wide range of activities, building on
peer mentoring and volunteering. Work
is underway in order to set a strategic
direction for employment and enterprise
within SPS. This will establish models,
processes and direct future investment to
deliver and shape individual employment
opportunities of the future. The continued
aim is to build prison communities which
act as a positive environment in which to
engage those in our care. The shaping
of future delivery is driven by evidence
and research, which will inform the future
development of baseline measures.
Work is progressing on the alignment of
our case management procedures to
include those for short-term sentenced
individuals and to bring our systems
in line with the asset-based approach.
We have developed models of case
management which are asset-based
(Asset Inquiry). This approach is
currently being piloted.
By placing learning at the centre of a
holistic approach to rehabilitation, the
SPS Organisational Review and Purposeful
Activity Review have provided the ideal
context for educational innovation and
increased engagement. A multi-agency
steering group including representation
from Education Scotland, Scotland’s
Colleges and the Scottish Qualifications
Authority has been established to

progress this work with the creation of a
new vision. SPS are planning to increase
the number of individuals in our care
accessing higher education and distance
learning opportunities. These courses can
significantly augment curriculum choice
at establishments and provide a wider
scope of educational, vocational and
employability training for learners.
Other examples of progressive
development include the expansion of
project-themed learning; higher and
distance learning opportunities across
the prison estate. These courses enable
learners to access a richer curricula
choice while improving their prospects
for employment. Moreover, a number of
innovative arts activities highlighted the
increased confidence and esteem for
learners furnishing them with the ability
to undertake more challenging activities
and accreditation. This was evident in the
record achievements by Scottish prisons
at the UK Koestler, Arts in Prisons awards.
Building on the success of last year’s
learning difficulties/disabilities screening
pilot, SPS is currently working towards
the implementation of a second phase
project in partnership with Forth Valley
NHS. This second phase will focus on the
establishment of care pathways for those
identified as requiring additional support
for learning.

Throughcare Support Officers (TSO)
Following the success of a pilot project
at HMP Greenock, and in order to
support the provision of throughcare
across Scotland, the SPS has moved to
recruit a dedicated cohort of 41 officers
to TSO roles. This is a key element of
SPS approach to partnership working to
reduce reoffending.
These officers will actively work together
as a network to develop their role, their
supporting systems and consistent
processes. They will work closely with
partners at local and national levels to
build on the relationships established
whilst in custody to support the successful
re-integration of individuals leaving our
care and returning to the community.

Supporting Children and Families
The SPS are developing a holistic family
strategy which will give particular
attention to the way in which a child is
welcomed when visiting their parent
in prison. We understand that high-

quality child-centred visits to prison and
ongoing community support are hugely
beneficial to children’s well-being and are
in keeping with key Scottish Government
policies such as Early Years, Getting it
Right for Every Child and the Whole System
Approach. In 2014 we commissioned
Barnardo’s to deliver a range of Parenting
Intervention Programmes in partnership
with SPS staff and there are further
initiatives ongoing across the SPS estate.

who present a risk of serious harm to the
public. In risk management, the SPS work
with the Risk Management Authority to
support and improve practice on risk
assessment and management specifically
with those individuals subject to an Order
for Lifelong Restriction.

to the strategic priority Developing a
Person-Centred Asset-Based Approach.

Video Conferencing Facilities

SPS has continued to support the
national cross justice video conferencing
project which is now part of the Scottish
Government’s overall Justice Digital
With a focus on desistance, the SPS
Strategy. The pilot projects have been
co‑sponsor with the Scottish Government expanded whereby all prisons within the
the Scottish Advisory Panel for Offender
estate are now fully equipped to provide
Rehabilitation (SAPOR) which is the
video links with the courts and legal
advisory and accreditation body for
agents. It is hoped that in the coming year
Better Health, Better Lives/Spiritual
offending behaviour programmes
significant progress towards achieving
Care, Religion and Belief
delivered in custody and in the community. the objective of contributing to improved
There has been a wide range of activity
The sex offender offending behaviour
efficiency in the justice system with
over the course of the year. This includes
programme developed jointly by SPS
fewer delays and better use of resources;
the completion of the evaluation of high
and the Scottish Government, ‘Moving
reduced costs; and a reduced carbon
care needs (published in March 2015) and
Forward: Making Changes’ achieved full
footprint will be made.
the suicide risk management strategy
which will be implemented over the course accreditation and is now being delivered
In addition to video links with the courts and
in four SPS Establishments. Constructs:
of next year. In summary there has been
legal agents, the SPS in partnership with
StepsTowards A Positive Life and The
evaluation and review this year which will
Apex Scotland in the centre of Aberdeen,
move to implementation of new strategies Youth Justice Programme are currently
established a community-based facility
under consideration for accreditation. In
within the next reporting year. SPS is
whereby family members could go and use
addition to the re-development of existing
taking part in the National Prison Health
video link facilities to take part in a family
programmes, the SPS also introduced a
Improvement group which is focused
visit with a friend or relative in custody.
new high-intensity programme for violent
on embedding the general approach on
This initiative was established to provide
offenders, the Self-Change Programme.
better health, better lives, and working
families in the north east area of Scotland
This was imported from National Offender
with the national healthcare network.
with a facility during the period between
Management Service (NOMS) and is
These partnership arrangements with
Peterhead and Aberdeen prisons closing
currently delivered in two sites.
NHS Health Boards are working well in
and HMP Grampian opening. The facility
the building of effective and consistent
proved very successful and has continued
services across prisons. The appointment Parole Change Project
to operate after HMP Grampian opened
SPS is a key partner in the Scottish
by SG of a Director for Health and
providing a link between Aberdeen and the
Government-sponsored
Parole
Change
justice on 20th January 2014 is bringing
prisons at Barlinnie, Grampian, Perth and
(PCP)
that
aims
to
develop
Project
additional momentum to the health and
Polmont. At the end of the financial year
and implement a shared vision for a
wellbeing agenda in prisons.
2014-15 there has been a total of 2,138
streamlined system of parole. Over the
visitors to the community facility over a
past year, the improved system has
total of 1,278 separate visits. Of the total
Risk Management and
been tested extensively at HMP Shotts.
number of visitors 311 were children.
Following a review of lessons learnt the
Rehabilitation
revised system is expected to be extended The SPS are currently assessing how the
The SPS continues to make a full
initiative may be expanded across further
across the SPS estate in 2015–16.
contribution to the national arrangements
prisons and areas so that families and
for public protection and rehabilitation.
offenders can benefit from the available
Strategy for Individuals Convicted
There is ongoing work with partners
technology.
of a Sexual Offence
to maintain Multi-Agency Public
Meeting the challenges relating to those
Protection Arrangements (MAPPA) for
individuals convicted of sex offences
Estate Development
the management of sex offenders in
remains a key focus. The sex offender
The SPS continues to drive forward the
the community. The SPS Governors
population in prisons is growing and
development and maintenance of the
participate in local MAPPA Strategic
ageing. SPS current allocation and
prison estate in line with the Scottish
Oversight Groups and local management
management model for sex offenders
Government’s Infrastructure and
participates in MAPPA Operational
was designed and implemented in 2011
Investment Plan. We also recognise the
Groups to ensure collaborative working.
when the sex offender population of the
part that we can play in contributing to
At a national level SPS contributes to
former HMP Peterhead moved to HMP
the Scottish Government’s objective of
the MAPPA National Steering Group and
Glenochil. Changes in the population,
reducing greenhouse gas emissions in
participates in the Joint Thematic review
advances in practice, and anticipated
the period up to 2020 with a target to
of MAPPA which will conclude in November future changes in legislation has meant
2015. We also participate in the MAPPA
that SPS has begun to scope out a revised reduce the overall total greenhouse gas
Extension Advisory Group responsible
allocation and management model as part (GHG) emissions by a relative 20% over
five years from 2010. This target equates
for providing advice to Ministers on the
of a wider strategic review of population
to a 7% absolute reduction in emissions.
extension of MAPPA to non-sex offenders management. This work has clear links

MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY

SCOTTISH PRISON SERVICE
ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2014-2015

Our 2014‑15 GHG emissions, detailed
in Appendix 10, have reduced by 8.5% in
absolute terms exceeding our Carbon
Management Strategy five-year reduction
target.
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Developing a Person-Centred
Asset-Based Approach
Developing Our People

Developing a Collaborative
Outcome Focus

There are a number of initiatives being
taken forward across the organisation
to develop our staff in order to empower
them to deliver a person-centred assetbased approach. These include:

Partnership Working

>

The SPS Organisational Review identified
a step change for SPS in focusing the
direction and ambition of partnership
working to achieve better outcomes
through collaboration. Our Corporate
Plan reflects the strategic objectives for
a Partnership Strategy:
>

>

Developing a collaborative, outcome
focus: enhance relationships with
stakeholders and the effectiveness
of partnership working to improve
services for offenders; and
Promoting public confidence in SPS:
develop closer working relationships
and improved communications with
the Scottish Government, the third
sector and stakeholders to better
align services and policy making.

SPS is working with key stakeholders
involved in public service reform. The
development of our Partnership Strategy
has enabled us to define how we work
with partners to improve co-production
and co-working. The key focus is to
contribute to ensuring partnerships and
collaborations are fully effective and make
clear the importance of outcomes and
defined objectives. Work has progressed
on clearly setting out who SPS’s key
collaborative partners are and how we can
jointly improve the efficacy of collective
efforts to reduce reoffending in Scotland.
We recognise developing a Partnership
Strategy is an opportunity to improve
legitimacy, engagement and develop trust
and understanding about the challenging
work of SPS. Examples of current
partnership working include membership
and contribution to key working groups,
discussions with local authorities on
existing service level agreements and
partnership working with a variety of
stakeholders such as the NHS.
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>

Women in Custody Curriculum – a
five‑month modular programme
utilising adult learning theories and
reflective practice approaches which
involves classroom hours, reflective
practice hours and e-learning modules.
The programme is centred on gender
specific issues for women in our care,
all of which is supported throughout
the course by direct and indirect
supervision.
Young People in Custody – a range
of training has been delivered. An
Emotional and Social Wellbeing
training programme was delivered in
partnership with Education Scotland
to over 380 staff members.

>

Throughcare Support Officer Role –
training to support our staff in moving
to a role which will support those in our
care as they return to the community.

>

Desistance Training – training to
develop understanding of desistance
which will support the strategic
priority on embedding the vision.

Women in Our Care
In implementing the strategy for women
in our care there has been good progress.
Community Integration Units are now
open in HMP Grampian and HMP Greenock
to support women in developing skills
for successful resettlement and building
important relationships and links to
community-based organisations. The
SPS has committed to the continuing
secondment of a prison officer to work
with women in Tomorrow’s Women
Glasgow. The role of the officer is to work
collaboratively with community colleagues
to optimise the provision of appropriate
services to women on release. The
secondment has increased awareness
of SPS staff regarding the barriers and
challenges faced by women returning
to their communities. The secondment
has also improved the understanding
of community colleagues in terms of
the work that goes on in prisons and
has developed greater trust and liaison
between partner organisations.

The Women Offenders team has
continued to develop collaborative and
productive partnerships with various
national, community and third sector
groups with the aim of improving services
for women offenders. Examples include
the Female Offenders Healthcare Steering
Group, the Scottish Trauma Advisory
Group, Tomorrow’s Women Steering
Group and the Scottish Working Group on
Women’s Offending.

Opportunities for Young People
Achievements over the last year evidence
strong progress in embedding the Vision
for Young People in Custody. Within HMYOI
Polmont there has been a refurbishment
of both purposeful activities areas to
create a suitable space to support the
learning environment and to facilitate the
introduction of new activities. There has
also been the opening of a peer mentoring
hub, parenting space, an employability and
enterprise centre, life skills learning space,
improved IT training area and a dedicated
creative and performing arts space.
As a strong learning facility the library
service in Polmont is now supported with
the provision of a professional librarian
from Falkirk Community Trust which will
allow the service to expand. There has also
been the introduction of a revised antibullying policy with a focus on support and
education delivered in conjunction with
Respect Me, Scotland’s national antibullying organisation.
HMYOI Polmont has expanded the youth
work role with the introduction of youth
workers in the residential areas of the
prison to improve engagement levels
and support offender management staff.
To ensure a collaborative approach with
those in our care there has been increased
engagement levels, with young people
now attending relevant management
meetings such as equality and diversity
and health promotion, and an increase in
the number of young people in mentor
roles.
Partnership working is a strong theme of
delivery on the opportunities for young
people. There has been co-delivery of
projects supported by organisations such
as Young Scot and the Youth Bank. There
is recognition of HMYOI Polmont as a
monitored community under the Scottish
Government Community Safety Board
and the recruitment and deployment of
a Police Scotland Community Sergeant
based within HMYOI Polmont to support

the work of the community safety
team. With partners, there has been the
introduction of a third sector co-ordinator
as point of contact for all partner agencies
providing services to the young people in
Polmont. With family involvement HMYOI
Polmont has introduced a family help hub
and bus in partnership with Crossreach,
Church of Scotland.
HMYOI Polmont, as Scotland’s national
facility for young people committed
to custody, continues to develop its
vision of a learning environment in
conjunction with Education Scotland,
its contracted education provider and
many third sector organisations. The key
capacities of Curriculum for Excellence,
and the principles of Getting it Right for
Every Child are now embedded in all the
establishment’s activities.

Becoming a Learning
Organisation
A wide range of in-house research
briefing was produced over the year to
support the transformational change
agenda and inform the implementation
of the purposeful activities strategy.
Work continued to support programme
accreditation with logic models and
evaluation advice. The Pre-Release Survey
2014 and the Ethnic Minority and Foreign
National Survey 2015 were delivered.
A reinvigorated Research Strategy was
written and a forward-looking Research
Programme approved by the Executive
Team.
External commissions included an
evaluation of the Peer Mentoring Project
in Polmont; an assessment of regime
provision suitable for the young adult
facility Cruden House, HMP Grampian; and
a study on Scotland’s ‘community facing
prisons’. The University of Cambridge was
also contracted to undertake a Measuring
Quality of Prisoner Life (MQPL) study in
HMP Grampian.
Locally, SPS Research played a significant
role in organising a highly successful
symposium in Edinburgh chaired by the
Chief Executive on Creating Space for
Change. The question of ‘how society
creates space for change’ invited
participants to reflect on what is needed
to support communities in integrating
citizens returning from a period in
custodial care. A compendium based on
the symposium papers was compiled,
edited and published.

Internationally, Research continued to
liaise with EuroPris and the International
Roundtable for Correctional Excellence for
the purpose of jurisdiction benchmarking.
SPS Research also hosted the EuroPris
Expert Group on Research and Statistics in
Edinburgh in September 2014. Significant
advances were made on the development
of the European Prison Information
System (EPIS), a map of European prison
systems holding information of common
interest; and also on the EuroPris
Knowledge Management System (KMS), a
system allowing services to contact each
other with specific penal queries.

promoting ‘citizen recovery’. We will
continue to improve our prisons so
that those in our care have a vibrant
living space that provides opportunities
for meaningful activities and time for
interacting with individuals within this
environment. We will drive forward our
plans for young people, ensuring that
each young person has an individualised
plan, and a Named Person. We will jointly
work with the Scottish Government to
take forward a fundamental review of our
approach to custodial care for women;
considering a wide range of options
including the creation of regional and
community-based custodial facilities.

Promoting Public Confidence
in SPS

The SPS is committed to ensuring
we invest in our people, systems and
processes to ensure we have an effective
The Chief Executive continued to be very
and efficient service which can have a high
proactive in his speaking engagements in
impact on individuals and society. We will
stimulating wider public debate on the key
continue to review what we do, adopting
role of research evidence in supporting
improvement science techniques, and
SPS’s transformational change agenda.
embedding a continuous improvement
There has also been steady progress in
culture across the organisation. We will
the development of a communications
ask ourselves stretching questions about
plan to increase knowledge and awareness
whether or not we need to continue to
of the work of SPS by the public.
carry out everything that we currently
do; as we search for opportunities to free
A stakeholder toolkit has been designed
up
existing resources to better target
following a review of stakeholders and
them
on areas that need to be expanded
partnerships at national level. This toolkit
to meet our strategic priorities; and
will allow for a consistency of approach in
developing and fostering relationships and wherever possible, look to technological
solutions to help streamline our systems.
will be implemented in the next reporting
year.
We aim to play a key role in the influencing
and shaping of justice policy in Scotland,
and to make a telling and meaningful
Future Developments
contribution to the legitimate ambitions
As we gather pace in reforming and
of our fellow citizens who pass into and
improving our service, we recognise that
out of our care, and to play our part in
working in partnership with the Scottish
supporting the victims of crime. The
Government (SG), stakeholders, and
ongoing delivery of our strategic priorities
the public is central in supporting the
will mean that we are playing our part in
people in our care and as they return to
delivering the Scottish Government’s
the community. We believe that the coProgramme for Government, supporting
authoring and co-production of services
the delivery of the Justice Strategy
with partners sits at the heart of our
for Scotland, ensuring that the SPS
reform agenda. This will involve further
and the public sector fully support our
strengthening our existing partnerships,
Government’s ambitions for a fairer,
developing new ones, ensuring these are
stronger and prosperous Scotland.
positive, respectful and meaningful, and
that there is clarity about the way we do
The Annual Delivery Plan 2015-16 was
business.
published on 1 April; full details can be
viewed on www.sps.gov.uk
Over the coming year, we are committed
to delivering our priorities around
Purposeful Activity and Throughcare to
ensure that individuals in our care can
build on their strengths and our people
are able to support them to become
full members of the community, thus
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Results for the Year
The Statement of Comprehensive Net
Expenditure for the year is shown on
page 34.

Operating Costs
The SPS has reported a Net Cost for the
Financial Year of £313,771k (2013-14
£264,127k). The significant increase is
due to the impact of revaluation of noncurrent assets in 2013-14. Staff costs
increased by 8.6% in the year as a result
of a one-off payment made to operational
staff in pay ranges C, D and E (note 3).
Running costs excluding depreciation
and impairment costs increased by
5.6%. Running costs included repairs and
maintenance of the SPS Estate.

Statement of Financial
Position
The Statement of Financial Position is on
page 35.
The most significant movements on the
statement of financial position from the
prior year are:
a) Changes in property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets
During the year the SPS made
improvements to buildings, land,
purchased plant and equipment,
fixtures and fittings, motor vehicles,
computer equipment, and intangible
assets at a cost of £22,880k (2013-14
£33,675k).

<17>

Land and buildings were either valued
or indexed at 31 March 2015 which
resulted in an increase of the asset
value of £61,540k. In addition, assets
held for sale decreased by £469k.
Notable changes in 2014-15
include the Cabinet Secretary’s
announcement that plans for a female
prison in Inverclyde would not go
ahead as it did not fit with his vision
of how to address female offending
in Scotland. As a result of this change
in Scottish Government policy,
SPS recorded a constructive loss
of £1,256k which relates to design
fees. The land site at Inverclyde also
suffered an impairment of £3,073k
following valuation by the Valuation
Office Agency.
b) Provisions for liabilities and charges
The accounting policy for provisions
and contingent liabilities is included
in note 1 of the Annual Accounts and
the sums provided for are detailed in
note 14. These include estimates of
potential prisoner compensation and
related costs where the cumulative
provision as at 31 March 2015 is
£2,707k (31 March 2014 £3,241k).
Also included are amounts payable to
former employees for loss of earnings
under the Civil Service Injury Benefit
Scheme where the provision as at
31 March 2015 is £8,801k (31 March
2014 £8,017k).

c) Trade and other payables
Included within creditors is an amount
of £104,953k (2013-14 £111,827k)
representing the imputed finance
lease for properties at HMP Addiewell
and HMP Kilmarnock and for vehicles
used in the Court Custody and
Prisoner Escorting Contract.

Actual
Outturn
£000

Revised
Budget
£000

Over/
(Underspend)
£000

Net Resource Expenditure
Net Capital Expenditure

267,162
22,505

273,175
24,032

(6,013)
(1,527)

Total Departmental Expenditure Limit (DEL) Expenditure

289,667

297,207

(7,540)

69,032

68,849

183

Provisions
Impairment

(1,560)
(20,599)

0
0

(1,560)
(20,599)

The Scottish Parliament approves funds
to the Scottish Government and related
bodies at the start of the year and
variations to these via the Autumn Budget
Revision in October and a Spring Budget
Revision in January.

Total AME Expenditure

(22,159)

0

(22,159)

Total

336,540

366,056

(29,516)

A comparison of the SPS final outturn with
the Spring Budget Revision for 2014-15
is detailed opposite. The table does
not include notional charges of £111k
(note 20).

During 2014-15, SPS operated within
the total budget approved at the Spring
Budget Revision of £366,056k. Overall,
SPS reported a DEL underspend of
£7,540k. This was as a result of project
slippage, a delay in acquiring a suitable
site for HMP Highland and underspends
in other areas, including pay and
prisoner‑related costs.

Financial Performance
The results of the SPS will be recorded in
the Scottish Government Consolidated
Account for 2014-15. The SPS is an
Executive Agency of the Scottish
Government. The Agency’s expenditure
forms a section within the Scottish
Government Justice Portfolio.

Expenditure Type
Departmental Expenditure Limit (DEL)

Total Outside DEL Expenditure
Annually Managed Expenditure (AME)

During 2014-15, SPS valued two
specialised properties, one non-specialised
property, 31 garage sites, a staff quarter
and 19 surplus land sites, and applied
indices to those properties that were not
part of the current year valuation program.
A rise in the tender price indices resulted
in reversal (£20,599k) of previous years’
impairments, excluding the impairment
charge of £4,329k for Inverclyde. This is
not scored against DEL expenditure and
is shown above scored against the AME
budget line.

SPS had an original budget for the year
of £379,248k, but savings in both pay
and non-pay costs allowed a transfer
of £10,632k to be made to meet capital
Additionally, analysis of AME provisions
expenditure priorities. Additionally, net
at year end has resulted in the reversal of
savings totalling £13,192k of the SPS
2014-15 original budget were surrendered provisions offsetting any increases.
to the  Scottish Government for other
priorities.

Payment of Creditors

As part of the Spring Budget Revision
process SPS are required to request
budget cover for Annually Managed
Expenditure (AME) to cover potential
increases of provisions and impairment
charges. During the Spring Budget
Revision period, SPS identified that
tender price indices, which underpin
the indexation and valuation of the SPS
estate, were continuing to increase which
would result in impairment reversals.
For this reason, no AME budget was
requested.
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During the year ended 31 March 2015 the
SPS paid 99.4% (2013-14 99.7%) of all
invoices received within the terms of its
payment policy.
The SPS has sought to achieve the
Scottish Government’s aspiration to
pay suppliers within 10 days. Payment
performance on this basis was 94.9%
(2013-14 94.5%).

Colin McConnell
Chief Executive
26 June 2015

The SPS’s policy is to pay all invoices,
not in dispute, in 30 days or the agreed
contractual terms if otherwise specified.
The SPS aims to pay 100% of invoices,
including disputed invoices once the
dispute has been settled, on time in these
terms.
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY – DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Board Members

The Directors of the SPS Board are listed on page 5. This
also details membership of the Risk Monitoring and Audit
Committee. As noted in the Governance Statement, the
Register of Interests of Directors is held centrally by SPS
and is reviewed annually.
Appointment of Chief
Executive
The Chief Executive was appointed by
the Permanent Secretary of the Scottish
Government who is empowered to
make any changes to the appointment.
The Permanent Secretary appointed
Colin McConnell as Chief Executive on                    
28 May 2012.

Estates Management
Strategy
SPS has considered the need for
alternative use valuations for their
operational sites, as part of the ongoing
programme of valuations obtained from
the District Valuer. A decision has been
taken that alternative use valuations
would not be appropriate or necessary
as construction costs associated with
development of operational prison sites
are in excess of alternative use values of
the land, and SPS has continued to work
on the redevelopment of existing sites.

Pension Liabilities
Past and present SPS employees are
covered by the provisions of the Principal
Civil Service Pension Scheme (PCSPS).
Further information on the scheme
and pension costs can be found in the
Remuneration Report and within the
Statement of Accounting Policies note 1
on Employee benefits.
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Occupational Health
SPS remain part of the Scottish Centre
for Healthy Working Lives Award
(HWLA) who run a series of award
programmes, Gold, Silver and Bronze;
a further award for Mental Health can
also be achieved by establishments
who have attained the Gold Award.
As a result of initiatives undertaken in
2014-15, seven of our establishments
have now achieved or maintained
the Gold Award with two of these
establishments having also achieved the
Mental Health Commendation Award;
two establishments have achieved or
maintained the Silver Award with the
remainder having achieved or are working
toward the Bronze Award.
SPS continue to focus on improving
well-being and attendance through
its Occupational Health and Wellbeing
Strategy, which includes our commitment
to the Healthy Working Lives Programme,
the Employee Assistance Programme,
the ongoing Inoculation Programme
and Lifestyle Screening Programme for
employees (carried out on a three year
cycle), all of which contribute to our
employee’s health and wellbeing. During
2014-15 the Average Working Days Lost
(AWDL) per employee has increased
to 10.5 which is a rise of 1.9 AWDL per
employee on the 2013-14 figure of 8.6.
Due to the nature of the work they carry
out, SPS employees are more at risk of
injury or stress related illnesses than
many other Civil Service employees.

SPS has consistently applied its Managing
Attendance and Absence Policy and
Procedure for 10 years. In this period
sickness absence has reduced by 12.5%.
SPS intend to continue working with
our Occupational Health Providers and
Employee Assistance Providers with a
view to decreasing the AWDL figure over
the next year and look at new ways to
promote their services via road shows
and/or site visits; by doing so, we hope to
reduce our absence levels.

In September 2014, the Keeper of the
Records of Scotland agreed the SPS
Records Management Plan meets the
requirements of the Public Records
(Scotland) Act 2011. The Keeper
considered that the SPS Records
Management Plan fully met 10 of the 14
elements of the Keeper’s Model Plan and
that SPS is committed to closing any gaps
in the remaining four elements. SPS has
established a Records Management team
to address the following key areas:
>

>

>

A Memorandum of Understanding
has been signed between SPS and
the National Records of Scotland
to manage the transfer of records
of national importance to NRS for
permanent preservation.

During 2014-15 there were no reported
personal data related incidents.

Appointed Auditors

The accounts are audited by auditors
appointed by the Auditor General for
Scotland. Under section 21 of the Public
Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act
2000, the Auditor General has determined
that Audit Scotland will be the appointed
Conversion of current paper-based
auditor for SPS for the financial years
prisoner records processes to
2011-12 to 2015-16. Audit Scotland
electronic in order to improve the
carried out the audit of SPS’s accounts
management, auditing and destruction for the financial year-ended 31 March
of prisoner records and to ensure that 2015. Audit Scotland determined that the
prisoner records are preserved in the
notional fee for this service was £96,390
event of an emergency.
(2013-14 £95,440) which relates solely to
Development and implementation
of a business classification scheme,
retention schedules and policies
covering every SPS function and
activity.

the provision of statutory audit services.
Audit Scotland are carrying out a local
study on Workforce Planning and will
report in 2015-16. The notional fee for
this service was £15,000.
The Chief Executive, as Accountable
Officer, who held office at the date of
approval of this management commentary
confirms that, so far as he is aware, there
is no relevant audit information of which
the SPS’s auditors are unaware; and that
the Chief Executive has taken all the steps
that he ought reasonable to have taken
as Accountable Officer to make himself
aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the SPS’s auditors
are aware of that information.

Colin McConnell
Chief Executive
26 June 2015

Information Security
The SPS takes information security very
seriously. Information security is the
responsibility of the Senior Information
Risk Owner at Board level and is governed
by an Information Governance Forum
which meets every two months.
There is an Information Security Unit
based in Headquarters and a network
of trained Information Security Officers
throughout the SPS. Each Information
Security Officer holds regular meetings
with their local management to discuss
information security and to prepare an
action plan for their area.
Robust information security policies
are in place and staff are made aware
of these policies through leaflets and
presentations. All staff undertake a
compulsory Cabinet Office e-learning
course on protecting information and a
process for reporting and investigating
information security incidents is in place.
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The remuneration of senior civil servants is set by the Prime
Minister following independent advice from the Review Body
on Senior Salaries.
In reaching its recommendations, the
Review Body has regard to the following
considerations:
>

the need to recruit, retain and
motivate suitably able and qualified
people to exercise their different
responsibilities;

>

regional/local variations in labour
markets and their effects on the
recruitment and retention of staff;

>

Government policies for improving
the public services including the
requirement on departments to meet
the output targets for the delivery of
departmental services;

>

the funds available to departments
as set out in the Government’s
departmental expenditure limits;

>

the Government’s inflation target.
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The Review Body takes account of
the evidence it receives about wider
economic considerations and the
affordability of its recommendations.
Further information about the work of
the Review Body can be found at
www.ome.uk.com.
The remuneration of the Executive
Board members is determined under
the Civil Service Management Code.
The remuneration of Non Executive
Board members is agreed with them
on appointment.

Service Contracts
The Constitutional Reform and
Governance Act 2010 requires Civil
Service appointments to be made
on merit on the basis of fair and
open competition. The Recruitment
Principles published by the Civil Service
Commission specify the circumstances
when appointments may be made
otherwise.

Unless otherwise stated below, the
officials covered by this report hold
appointments which are open-ended.
Early termination, other than for
misconduct, would result in the individual
receiving compensation as set out in the
Civil Service Compensation Scheme.
Further information about the work of the
Civil Service Commission can be found at
www.civilservicecommission.org.uk

Remuneration (including
salary) and pension
entitlements
The following sections provide details of
the remuneration and pension interests
of the SPS Board members.
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Remuneration (salary and payments in kind)
Salary £000
Single total figure of
remuneration

Bonus Payments
£000

Benefits in Kind
nearest £100

Pension
Benefits £0001

Total £000

Median Pay

Salary

Benefits in Kind

The banded remuneration of the highestpaid director in the Scottish Prison Service
in the financial year 2014-15 was £110,000
– £115,000 (Full Year Equivalent). This was
four times the median remuneration of the
workforce, which was £28,604 (2013‑14
£28,320).

Salary includes gross salary, overtime,
recruitment and retention allowances,
and any other allowance to the extent that
it is subject to UK taxation. This report is
based on accrued payments made by the
SPS and thus recorded in these accounts.

The monetary value of benefits in kind
covers any benefits provided by the
employer and treated by HM Revenue and
Customs (HMRC) as a taxable emolument.

2014-15

2013-14

2014-15

2013-14

2014-15

2013-14

2014-15

2013-14

2014-15

2013-14

110-115

110-115

-

-

-

-

23

8

130-135

115-120

E MURCH
Director of Operations

80-85

80-85

-

-

-

-

17

2

95-100

80-85

C TOPLEY
Director of Corporate
Services

80-85

80-85

-

-

-

-

32

31*

110-115

110-115

I DAVIDSON
Director of Strategy
& Innovation

75-80

5-10
(75-80
Full Year
Equivalent)

-

-

-

-

68

5

140-145

10-15

A BURNS2
Non-Exec Director

0-5

5-10

-

-

-

-

-

-

0-5

5-10

J MARTIN3
Non-Exec Director

5-10

5-10

-

-

-

-

-

-

5-10

5-10

S MATHESON4
Non-Exec Director

5-10

5-10

-

-

-

-

-

-

5-10

5-10

H McGUIGAN5
Non-Exec Director

5-10

5-10

-

-

-

-

-

-

5-10

5-10

Z VAN
ZWANENBERG
Non-Exec Director

5-10

5-10

-

-

-

-

-

-

5-10

5-10

S BROWELL6
Non-Exec Director

0-5

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

0-5

-

A BURNS
Non-Exec Director

No pension entitlement

H MONRO
Non-Exec Director

0-5

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

0-5

-

J MARTIN
Non-Exec Director

No pension entitlement

A MACMILLAN8
Non-Exec Director

0-5

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

0-5

-

S MATHESON
Non-Exec Director

No pension entitlement

C McCONNELL
Chief Executive

7

Band of Highest Paid Director’s Total Remuneration
(£000)
Median Total Remuneration
Ratio
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Bonuses are based on performance levels
attained and are made as part of the
appraisal process. Bonuses relate to the
performance in the year in which they
become payable to the individual.

Pension Benefits

C McCONNELL
Chief Executive
E MURCH
Director of Operations
C TOPLEY
Director of Corporate Services
I DAVIDSON
Director of Strategy & Innovation

Accrued pension
at pension age as
at 31/3/15 and
related lump sum
£000

Real increase
in pension and
related lump sum
at pension age
£000

CETV at
31/3/15
£000

CETV at
31/3/14
£000

Real increase
in CETV
£000

Employer
contribution
to partnership
pension account
nearest £100

Pension 45-50
Lump Sum 135-140

Pension 0-2.5
Lump Sum 2.5-5

887

828

18

-

Pension 25-30
Lump sum 85-90

Pension 0-2.5
Lump Sum 2.5-5

601

558

14

-

Pension 5-10

Pension 0-2.5

72

54*

8

-

Pension 20-25
Lump Sum 60-65

Pension 2.5-5
Lump Sum 5-10

348

283

48

-

2014-15

2013-14

H MCGUIGAN
Non-exec Director

No pension entitlement

110 – 115

110 – 115

Z VAN ZWANENBERG
Non-Exec Director

No pension entitlement

28,604

28,320

No pension entitlement

4.0

4.0

S BROWELL
Non-Exec Director
H MONRO
Non-Exec Director

No pension entitlement

A MACMILLAN
Non-Exec Director

No pension entitlement

*The Pension Benefit for 2013-14 has been restated due to inflation adjustments being included in error.
The following Board members left SPS in 2013-14 and are not included above: W Pretswell (left 31 August 2013); D Gunn (left 31 January 2014);
J Richardson (left 29 November 2013); I Whitehead (returned to substantive post 3 March 2014).
1. The value of pension benefits accrued during the year is calculated as (the real increase in pension multiplied by 20) less (the contributions made
by the individual). The real increase excludes increases due to inflation or any increase or decrease due to a transfer of pension rights.
2. A Burns resigned from the SPS and left on 30 April 2014.
3. J Martin resigned from the SPS and left on 19 September 2014.
4. S Matheson resigned from the SPS and left on 31 October 2014.
5. H McGuigan resigned from the SPS and left on 31 December 2014.
6. S Browell joined SPS as a Non-Executive Director on 21 January 2015.
7. H Monro joined SPS as a Non-Executive Director on 21 January 2015.
8. A MacMillan joined SPS as a Non-Executive Director on 25 March 2015.

Bonuses

*The CETV at 31 March 2014 has been restated due to inflation adjustments being included in error.
All the above information disclosed in the Remuneration Report has been audited by SPS’s auditors. The other sections of the Remuneration Report
were reviewed by the auditors to ensure they were consistent with the financial statements.
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Civil Service Pensions
Pension benefits are provided through the
Civil Service pension arrangements. From
30 July 2007, civil servants may be in one
of four defined benefit schemes; either a
final salary scheme (classic, premium or
classic plus); or a whole career scheme
(nuvos). These statutory arrangements
are unfunded with the cost of benefits met
by monies voted by Parliament each year.
Pensions payable under classic, premium,
classic plus and nuvos are increased
annually in line with Pensions Increase
legislation. Members joining from October
2002 may opt for either the appropriate
defined benefit arrangement or a ‘money
purchase’ stakeholder pension with
an employer contribution (partnership
pension account).
Employee contributions are salary-related
and range between 1.5% and 6.85% of
pensionable earnings for classic and
3.5% and 8.85% for premium, classic plus
and nuvos. Benefits in classic accrue at
the rate of 1/80th of final pensionable
earnings for each year of service. In
addition, a lump sum equivalent to
three years initial pension is payable on
retirement. For premium, benefits accrue
at the rate of 1/60th of final pensionable
earnings for each year of service. Unlike
classic, there is no automatic lump sum.
Classic plus is essentially a hybrid with
benefits for service before 1 October
2002 calculated broadly as per classic and
benefits for service from October 2002
worked out as in premium. In nuvos a
member builds up a pension based on his
pensionable earnings during their period
of scheme membership. At the end of the
scheme year (31 March) the member’s
earned pension account is credited with
2.3% of their pensionable earnings in that
scheme year and the accrued pension
is uprated in line with Pensions Increase
legislation. In all cases members may opt
to give up (commute) pension for a lump
sum up to the limits set by the Finance
Act 2004.
The partnership pension account is a
stakeholder pension arrangement. The
employer makes a basic contribution of
between 3% and 12.5% (depending on
the age of the member) into a stakeholder
pension product chosen by the employee
from a panel of providers. The employee
does not have to contribute, but
where they do make contributions, the
employer will match these up to a limit
of 3% of pensionable salary (in addition
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to the employer’s basic contribution).
Employers also contribute a further 0.8%
of pensionable salary to cover the cost
of centrally-provided risk benefit cover
(death in service and ill health retirement).
The accrued pension quoted is the
pension the member is entitled to
receive when they reach pension age, or
immediately on ceasing to be an active
member of the scheme if they are already
at or over pension age. Pension age is
60 for members of classic, premium and
classic plus and 65 for members of nuvos.
Further details about the Civil Service
pension arrangements can be found at
the website
www.civilservicepensionscheme.org.uk.
New Career Average pension
arrangements will be introduced from
1 April 2015 and the majority of classic,
premium, classic plus and nuvos members
will join the new scheme. Further details
of this new scheme are available at http://
www.civilservicepensionscheme.rog.uk/
members/the-new-pension-schemealpha/

Cash Equivalent Transfer
Values
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV)
is the actuarially assessed capitalised
value of the pension scheme benefits
accrued by a member at a particular
point in time. The benefits valued are
the member’s accrued benefits and any
contingent spouse’s pension payable from
the scheme. A CETV is a payment made
by a pension scheme or arrangement
to secure pension benefits in another
pension scheme or arrangement when
the member leaves a scheme and chooses
to transfer the benefits accrued in their
former scheme. The pension figures
shown relate to the benefits that the
individual has accrued as a consequence
of their total membership of the pension
scheme, not just their service in a senior
capacity to which disclosure applies.

Schemes (Transfer Values) (Amendment)
Regulations 2008 and do not take account
of any actual or potential reduction to
benefits resulting from Lifetime Allowance
Tax which may be due when pension
benefits are taken.

Real Increase in CETV
This reflects the increase in CETV that
is funded by the employer. It does not
include the increase in accrued pension
due to inflation, contributions paid by
the employee (including the value of
any benefits transferred from another
pension scheme or arrangement) and uses
common market valuation factors for the
start and end of the period.

Compensation for Loss of
Office
Compulsory, Flexible or Approved Early
Retirement terms
There were no SPS Board members that
left on Compulsory, Flexible or Approved
Early Retirement terms.
Compulsory or Flexible Early Severance
terms
There were no SPS Board Members
that left on Compulsory or Flexible Early
Severance terms.
Voluntary Exit, Voluntary Redundancy
or Compulsory Redundancy terms
There were no SPS Board Members that
left on Voluntary Exit terms.

Colin McConnell
Chief Executive
26 June 2015

The figures include the value of any
pension benefit in another scheme or
arrangement which the member has
transferred to the Civil Service pension
arrangements. They also include any
additional pension benefit accrued to
the member as a result of their buying
additional pension benefits at their own
cost. CETVs are worked out in accordance
with The Occupational Pension
REMUNERATION REPORT
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER’S RESPONSIBILITIES

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Accounts

Scope of Responsibilities

i.

In accordance with Article 19(4) of
the Public Finance and Accountability
(Scotland) Act 2000 the Scottish
Ministers have directed the Scottish
Prison Service (SPS) to prepare a
statement of accounts for each
financial year in the form and, on
the basis, set out in the Accounts
Direction on page 59. The accounts
are prepared on an accrual basis and
must give a true and fair view of the
SPS’s state of affairs at the year-end
and of its income and expenditure,
recognised gains and losses and cash
flows for the financial year.

ii. The Accountable Officer of the
Scottish Government has designated
the Chief Executive of the SPS as the
Accountable Officer for the SPS. The
responsibilities of an Accountable
Officer, including responsibility for the
propriety and regularity of the public
finances and for the keeping of proper
records, are set out in the Accountable
Officer’s Memorandum issued by the
Scottish Government.

iii. The Accountable Officer for SPS is
required to:
- observe the Accounts Direction
issued by the Scottish Ministers,
including the relevant accounting and
disclosure requirements, and apply
suitable accounting policies on a
consistent basis;
- make judgements and estimates on
a reasonable basis;
- state whether applicable accounting
standards as set out in the
Government Financial Reporting
Manual have been followed, and
disclose and explain any material
departures in the accounts; and
- prepare the accounts on a going
concern basis.

As Accountable Officer, I have
responsibility for maintaining a sound
system of internal control that supports
the achievement of the Scottish Prison
Service’s policies, aims and objectives set
by Scottish Ministers whilst safeguarding
the public funds and departmental assets
for which I am personally responsible,
in accordance with the responsibilities
assigned to me.
As Accountable Officer, I am accountable
to Scottish Ministers for the operation
of the SPS; for advising them on policy
on prisons; for the management of SPS
and for planning its future development.
Relevant accountabilities are set out in the
Agency Framework Document.

arrangements. Core functions of RMAC
are outlined within relevant committee
terms of reference. At the 31 March 15,
the RMAC comprises of two Independent
Members and two Non-Executive
Directors with the Chief Executive, Head
of Financial Policy & Services and Head
of Audit & Assurance in attendance. The
RMAC met on four occasions during
2014‑15.

>

SPS’ vision, plan and communication:
In March 2012, the SPS Board
approved the SPS Corporate Plan for
2012-2015 which sets out the aims
and high level priorities for the SPS
over the spending review period. The
SPS Interim Delivery Plan 2014-15
set out the continuing work of the
Scottish Prison Service which would
be taken forward in 2014-15. The SPS
Interim Delivery Plan for 2014-15 is
underpinned by service frameworks
which are agreed with each publicly
operated prison. Privately operated
prisons and custodial services such
as the Court Custody and Prisoner
Escort Service were managed under
contractual arrangement. The SPS
Board approved internal budgets to
support delivery of these services and
contracts prior to the commencement
of the financial year.

>

SPS Directorates: The three Executive
Directors and Executive Team have
been in place for the financial year. The
organisation has been and is still going
through a period of significant change.
Branch re-structures beneath Director
level were largely completed in the
course of the year.

>

Service Delivery and Performance:
In March 2015, the Advisory Board
reviewed an update on performance
and progress against the SPS Delivery
Plan for 2014-15 at the third quarter
stage. The Annual Delivery Plan takes
forward agreed corporate deliverables
which are driven by the SPS Strategic
Priorities and associated outcomes.
The Annual Delivery Plans arise from
the three year Corporate Plan for
2012-15. Performance continues

As Chief Executive, I chair an internal
Management Advisory Board which
comprises three Executive Directors,
senior SPS staff who are accountable to
the me for their areas of responsibility
and the delivery of the operational
services they lead and four independent
Non-Executive Directors appointed
for their expertise, who collectively act
in an advisory capacity. The role of the
SPS Management Advisory Board (the
Board) is to support the Chief Executive in
providing leadership and in directing and
controlling the organisation in the public
interest. The Directors of the SPS Board
are as listed on page 5.

The SPS Risk Monitoring and Audit
Committee (RMAC) supports the Chief
Executive and the Board by scrutinising
the effectiveness of SPS corporate
governance arrangements including risk
management, performance management,
systems of internal control and assurance

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER’S RESPONSIBILITIES

>

Financial Framework, Policies and
Procedures: The SPS Framework
Document sets out the policy and
resources framework set by Scottish
Ministers within which the SPS
operates. This details the respective
roles of the Scottish Ministers, the
Scottish Government Learning and
Justice Director General, the SPS
Chief Executive and SPS Board in
overseeing the performance of
our prisons and in accounting to
Parliament on all these matters.
The Framework Document is the
main source of authority for the
Chief Executive to lead the SPS
and includes his delegated limits.
The Chief Executive in turn, has
established schemes of delegation
for each of the Executive Directors.
SPS, as an Executive Agency of the
Scottish Government, is required
to comply with the Scottish Public
Finance Manual (SPFM). This sets out
the relevant statutory, Parliamentary
and administrative requirements,
emphasises the need for economy,
efficiency and effectiveness, and
promotes good practice and high
standards of propriety. As part of the
Strategic Refresh and Organisational
Review of the SPS and following
consultation with Audit Scotland, a
new Framework Document for the
Agency, with a supporting Governance
and Performance Management
Framework will be produced.

>

Compliance with relevant laws/
regulations and internal policies
and procedures: Specialist advisors
are employed in each Directorate to
ensure compliance with relevant laws
and regulations. Where appropriate,
legal advice is sought from external
legal providers and advice and scrutiny
of procedures is provided by internal
and external auditors. Compliance
with internal policies and procedures

Undernoted, is a brief summary of the
key elements that comprise the Board’s
governance arrangements and how they
are linked together:

Governance Framework

As Chief Executive I establish the
strategic direction of SPS; ensure public
accountability; assure probity and
integrity; allocate resources and monitor
performance; review and manage risks
facing SPS and develop capability and
performance while ensuring sound
corporate governance. During 201415, the Board met six times at various
locations throughout the estate. Minutes
of Board meetings are published on the
SPS website.

to be measured in a number of ways
including achievement of operational
performance, strategic performance,
private contract monitoring, surveys,
research, taking into account the work
of internal and external audit and the
findings of external inspectorates like
the HMIPS. The current performance
framework is identified in Appendix 8.
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is achieved through the Statements of
Assurance process, internal reviews
conducted by the Audit & Assurance
Unit and external contract monitoring.
During 2014-15, the corporate
governance arrangements adopted
by SPS complied with the generally
accepted best practice principles
and guidance, as outlined in relevant
sections of the Scottish Public Finance
Manual.
>

>

>

Whistle blowing and complaints:
The SPS Framework Document sets
out requirements for SPS in respect
of inspection, maladministration
and complaints, both for prisoners
and members of the public. Under
the Prison Rules 2011, the prisoner
complaints process is based on the
good practice complaints handling
model recommended by the Scottish
Public Services Ombudsman (SPSO).
The SPS Whistleblowing Policy was
updated in May 2013 and is likely to be
reviewed again in 2015-16. The SPS
maintain a confidential Whistleblowing
hotline to which staff and members
of the public can report areas of
concern. There is a similar facility
for members of staff or the public to
report suspected fraud and details
of this confidential telephone line are
contained in the SPS Fraud Response
Policy.
Register of Interests of Directors and
Governors: A Register of Interests
of Directors and Governors is held
centrally. No significant interests were
recorded during 2014-15.
Partnerships and other group
working: The development of
stronger and more collaborative
partnerships with Justice partners,
including social work and the third
sector is essential for SPS in pursuit
of our revised mission. Furthermore,
the substantial changes being taken
forward under Community Justice and
wider Public Service reform provides
opportunities and sets a challenge
to improve collaborative working.
Substantial progress has been made
through the transfer of responsibility
for healthcare in prisons to the NHS
and the development of Public Social
Partnerships to improve throughcare.
A major focus for the period ahead
is the building of a new partnership
based approach with relevant social
work authorities to replace the current
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Service Level Agreements for the
provision of prison-based social
work services in April 2017. In 2014
the independent Working Together
Review: Progressive Workplace Policies
in Scotland reported on successful
partnership working with trade unions
within SPS. The report highlighted
that the Partnership Agreement
“... provides the backbone to fair
industrial relations in the sector, both
in helping achieve good standards
of decision-making and in handling
divergent views as they emerge.”

The Purpose of the System
of Internal Control
The system of internal control is designed
to manage risk to an acceptable level,
rather than eliminate all risk of failure to
achieve policies, aims and objectives. It
can therefore only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance of effectiveness.
The system of internal control is based
on an ongoing process designed to
identify and prioritise the risks to the
achievement of departmental policies,
aims and objectives; to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and
the impact should they be realised; and
to manage them efficiently, effectively
and economically. The system of internal
control has been in place in the Scottish
Prison Service for the year ended 31st
March 2015 and up to the date of approval
of the Annual Report and Accounts
and accords with Scottish Government
guidance.

Review of Adequacy and
Effectiveness of Internal
Control Environment and
Corporate Governance
As Accountable Officer, I also have
a responsibility for reviewing the
effectiveness of the systems of internal
control and corporate governance.
This review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control and corporate
governance is informed by the work
of internal audit who submit regular
reports to the SPS RMAC which includes
the Head of Audit’s independent and
objective opinion on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the SPS systems
of internal control, together with
recommendations for improvement. The
effectiveness of the system of internal
control is further informed through
executive managers within the SPS who

have responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the internal control
framework and comments made by the
external auditors in their interim report
and other reports. As Chief Executive,
I am also advised on the implications
of the results of mid-year review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal
control by the Board, the RMAC and a
plan to address weaknesses and ensure
continuous improvement of the system is
in place.

Risk Owner (SIRO) who chairs the
Information Governance Forum and
which met seven times during 201415 for this purpose. In addition, an
Information Security Unit has been
created, employing two permanent
full time staff and two temporary
staff and with a network of trained
Information Security Officers across
establishments;
>

The system of internal control and
corporate governance has been
supported by:
>

Six meetings of the SPS Board within
the Financial Year;

>

Meetings of the Chief Executive
and Executive Directors to deal with
operational and other issues;

>

Monitoring and reporting of
performance against key performance
indicators;

>

Twice yearly Statements of Assurance
from every Executive Director,
(supported by a memorandum on year
end issues) covering the key systems
for which they are responsible. The
contents of these Statements of
Assurance focus on assurance over
the management of key risks and
identification of emerging issues
which could impact on the systems of
internal control. These Statements of
Assurance are reviewed by the Head
of Audit and Assurance and the Chief
Executive, and the effectiveness of
this process reported to the RMAC;

>

Annual report to the Board from the
Chairman of the RMAC concerning
the corporate governance and control
environment;

>

Regular reports from internal
assurance providers on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the system
of internal control, together with
recommendations for improvements
and the action management
proposes taking to implement these
recommendations;

>

Implementing measures for SPS
to ensure information security
and standardise and enhance the
management of information risk. The
Director of Corporate Services is the
organisation’s Senior Information

>

>

During 2014-15 a Change Portfolio
Governance Structure was agreed
with the Corporate Change Unit.
The key principles underpinning the
governance structure are simplicity
and proportionality. Each Directorate
will have a relevant programme control
structure. Thereafter, change activity
will be subject to an additional level
of scrutiny via the Change Portfolio
Board with regular reporting to both
the SPS Executive Group and SPS
Advisory Board. It is believed that the
level of governance is proportionate
to the risks and scale of change.

a positive change in the organisation’s
response to scrutiny and a willingness
to implement change and to pursue
continuous improvement. However,
there is a need to implement a
more formal governance structure
in terms of process and support
systems.” The report identified
twenty four recommendations to
support improvement in the delivery
of effective corporate governance.
These included refreshing the SPS
Framework Document to reflect
current priorities, clarifying the
responsibilities of Executive and NonExecutive Directors and the respective
roles of the Board and RMAC. Further
recommendations were made on the
induction, appraisal and succession
planning arrangements for NonExecutive Directors and RMAC
appointments. Work is underway
to take these recommendations
forward in line with the action plan
agreed in the report. Additionally, the
recommendations will be the subject
of a report presented to the RMAC in
November 2015.

that proper accounting records are
maintained and ensures compliance
with current legislation and
Government financial procedures;
>

Progression of management action
from internal and external audit
reports;

>

In the course of 2014-15, as Chief
Executive, I continued to Chair a
National Steering Group for the
Improvement of Services to Women
Offenders. The Group’s Terms of
Reference are to work with partners
to review and refresh SPS’ strategic
framework to ensure it reflects the
findings and recommendations of the
Women’s Commission, as they relate
to women in custody.

>

As Chief Executive, I am a member
of the Scottish Government Justice
Board, the purpose of which is; to
work together to ensure the effective
operation of the justice system as
a whole; to achieve the priorities
and outcomes sought by Scottish
Ministers; and to deliver collectively,
improvements in outcomes and
services, both through change
programmes and on-going core
business;

The Fraud Response Group (FRG)
focuses on fraudulent activity within
the organisation at an early stage,
reviews the lessons learned, promotes
awareness of fraudulent activity
and influences policy development.
The FRG met on four occasions
>
during the financial year and will
deliver its annual report to the June
2015 meeting of the RMAC. During
>
2014-15 the FRG proposed a merger
of the Fraud Response Group and
the National Intelligence Bureau/
Human Resources working group to
>
create a single entity responsible for
overseeing the SPS’ response to all
issues around fraud and corruption.
This proposal acknowledges areas of
overlap between these two groups and
it is anticipated that the merger will
address gaps in SPS’ approach to the
management of potential corruption
throughout the Service, thereby
managing potential exposure to
corporate risk.
The SPS Financial Policy and Guidance
Manual provides standard authority
for establishments, SPS College,
Central Stores and Headquarters
>
Directorates on financial policy
and guidance. Compliance with its
contents is mandatory and maintains
propriety in the control of Government
expenditure and income. It ensures
assets are properly safeguarded,

>

The SPS has operated as part of the
Learning and Justice portfolio;
The use of Project Management and
gateway review processes to manage
major projects;
During 2014-15 a number of key
operational areas were identified
where, following audit review,
“substantial assurance” will be
a requirement rather than just
“reasonable assurance”. This includes
areas such as Security, ACT2Care,
Prisoner Complaints and Warrant
Administration. Cell Sharing Risk
Assessment received limited
assurance at three establishments
during the 2014-15 audit review,
however, there will be a requirement
for this to improve during the next
reporting year;
As Chief Executive, I agreed an Audit
Scotland Review of governance
arrangements in the course of
2014‑15. The report commented
“In general, the SPS Advisory Board
and RMAC are operating with a good
level of challenge. There is evidence of

In the year 2014-15, the Head of
Audit & Assurance offered an overall
reasonable level of assurance based
on his review of the corporate
governance and control environment,
management of risk and reliance
placed on the work of other external
assurance providers.

Good Practices
In accordance with the principles of Best
Value, the Board aims to foster a culture
of continuous improvement. As part of
this regime, Directors and managers are
encouraged to review, identify and improve
the efficient and effective use of resources.
Arrangements have been made to secure
Best Value, as set out in the Scottish Public
Finance Manual. Improvements under
Effective Partnerships arrangements in
2014-15 include:
>

Face to face consultation, by members
of the Board, with many of its key
stakeholders to obtain feedback on
performance and to establish forward
priorities;

>

Working with local authorities
to further develop Service Level
Agreements for Social Work services;

>

Continue working to develop a
prisoner health strategy ensuring
GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
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close and effective partnership
working between SPS and NHS
Scotland and its Health Boards in
the delivery of prisoner health care;
>

Managing the Court Custody and
Prisoner Escort Contract on behalf
of Justice partners;

>

Working closely with the Community
Justice Authorities (CJAs) to support
community justice outcomes for
offenders and further develop the
“community facing” approach with
greater alignment of prison and locally
based statutory and support services;

>

>

>

Working in partnership with Third
Sector and other Agencies to share
information and to help prepare
offenders to make a successful
transition back to their communities
including direct support of Public
Social Partnerships;

<31>

Risk Assessment
As a Prison Service, management of risk
is central to our operational activities at
every level. The risk management process
is driven by the Board who review the key
risks to the Prison Service (as shown in
the Corporate Risk Register) and consider
whether any new risks are emerging.
Considerable attention is paid to the
identification and management of risk
at all levels, from risks associated with
managing a fluctuating prison population
through to ensuring SPS contributes to
effective joining up across the criminal
justice system.

The Risk and Control
Framework
The key elements of the SPS Risk
Management Strategy are:
>

Continuing to work with Scottish
Government and Local Authorities to
develop, extend and share the “Good
Lives Programme” as appropriate
between prisons and the community;
Responding positively to the
recommendations of the Women’s
Commission on Offenders and reflect
as SPS Strategic frameworks for
Women Offenders in Custody and
for Young Offenders. In addition,
working with partners to develop new
and innovative services for women
offenders;

>

Developing the SPS approach to
addressing the issue of domestic
abuse, complementing Scottish
Government strategies for tackling
domestic violence issues and ensuring
compatibility with services provided in
the community; and

>

Consulting with stakeholders on the
transformational change programme
for the SPS and ensuring that the
organisation of the SPS supports
sustainable and effective offender
management, through care practices
and improved outcomes.

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

For 2014-15 and onwards, Audit &
Assurance assumed responsibility for
enterprise wide risk management.
Some difficulty was encountered
in recruitment but towards the
end of the financial year, a qualified
and experienced Risk Manager was
appointed. His role will be to deliver
a system of enterprise wide risk
management with the first steps
being the production of an SPS Risk
Management Policy and Strategy
together with devising a risk reporting
mechanism to the Executive Group,
the Advisory Board and RMAC.

>

In the course of the financial year
2014-15, an exercise was carried
out to gauge current risk perception
within SPS middle management and
Executive Directors. Directors and
Heads of Service were surveyed to
ask them their perception of what
were Corporate Risks (and significant
Branch risks). Results were reported to
the November 2014 meeting of RMAC.

>

The Corporate Risk Register has
been presented to Members of the
RMAC when changes occur in the
Corporate Risk profile. A Corporate
Risk is selected for in depth discussion
at each meeting of RMAC. Although
the RMAC does not own or manage
the reported risks, the Committee
maintains a critical role in scrutinising
the effectiveness of Risk Management

processes within SPS. The Corporate
Risk Register was refreshed for
the March 2015 meeting of RMAC
and three new key risks added. The
Corporate Risk Register is still at
development stage and will be subject
to a complete overhaul in the new
financial year. It is recognised there is
a need to improve the Corporate Risk
Register and the reporting of risk and
this will be a priority area of work for
the new Corporate Risk Manager.
>

All matters appearing on Executive
Directors’ Statements of Assurance
are tied back to specific risks
appearing on the Corporate Risk
Register;

>

All reviews appearing on the Annual
Audit and Assurance Plan are tied
back to specific risks appearing on the
Corporate Risk Register;

>

Risk owners are identified at Executive
Director level and are responsible
for reporting back to the Advisory
Board on the steps they are taking
to manage the risks in their areas of
responsibility;

>

>

Management of risk is recognised
within our corporate plan, business
planning process, management of
major projects and key contracts and
is reviewed by the Advisory Board and
at other levels (including the Audit and
Assurance Unit). The risk appetite of
the organisation is kept under review
and represents the level of risk the
SPS is prepared to accept and is also
informed by on-going dialogue with
the Scottish Government’s Director
General (Learning & Justice) and the
Cabinet Secretary for Justice. This
level of acceptable risk will depend on
the nature of work undertaken and the
business objectives pursued ; and
Risks scoring 20-25 on the SPS
Corporate Risk Register are
categorised as “Very High” and must
be reported to the Director General,
Learning and Justice and the Learning
and Justice Audit Committee.
This ensures that appropriate risk
mitigation is being taken forward by
the Scottish Government where a
particular risk is outside the remit and
management of the SPS.

Significant Issues

Information Technology

As Accountable Officer, I have
responsibility for reviewing the
effectiveness of the system of internal
control. During 2014-15 the following
have been identified as significant issues:

SPS rely heavily on IT structures
to support day to day operations.
Development and maintenance of this
area is a key aspect of successfully
running operations. Issues emerging
over the course of the year, in relation to
two projects have led SPS to give further
careful consideration of the IT Strategy.
SPS intended to deliver digital HR and
procurement capabilities, providing much
needed self-service functionality and
associated business efficiencies. The HR
system is now in operation for personnel
details, however, the project is currently
running behind schedule in relation to
the roll out of additional functionalities.
The procurement project is currently
on-hold following an Independent
Assurance Review. A re-planning exercise
has commenced to address the issues
identified by the review.

HMP Grampian
The operational issues relating to HMP
Grampian were addressed during the
year and a long term plan was developed
and is being implemented to ensure its
stability. This project is managed via the
Operations Directorate Programme Board
(ODPB), which is chaired by the Director of
Operations.
Population at HMP Grampian has
increased in a controlled and measured
manner since an incident in May 2014,
with a date for full occupancy still to be
determined.
Work is also on-going to address the
issues surrounding the recruitment and
retention of staff at Grampian. This is
being carried out in collaboration with SPS
Workforce Planning and SPS recruitment
teams, and further supported by the
deployment of SPS staff on Detached
Duty to support, train and mentor the
existing staff at HMP Grampian.

The Annual Delivery Plan focused on
establishing firm foundations to realise
our ambitions to transform the Service.
The priorities were to implement the
new organisational structures, develop
strategy and policy, and extend our
reach into the community. Performance
and progress against this Plan has been
monitored and reported through the
Corporate Planning and Performance
function within Strategy and Innovation
Directorate.
The Board continues to recognise
the inherent risks in delivering this
transformational change programme but
believes by doing so it will enable the SPS
to better contribute to creating a justice
system in Scotland that is a model of
excellence.

Data Loss
Up to 31 March 2015, there were no
reported instances of data loss which
posed a significant risk to SPS.

Colin McConnell
Chief Executive
26 June 2015

Follow Up of Prior Year
Significant Issues
Organisational Review

Strategy for the Management
of Women in Custody

The 2014-17 Corporate Plan and
2014-15 Annual Delivery Plan were
created following the publication of the
On 26 January 2015 the Cabinet Secretary Organisational Review to take forward the
for Justice announced that the plans for
transformation of the Service. These plans
a female prison in Inverclyde would not
focused on delivering the challenging
go ahead as this did not fit with his vision
programme of change outlined in the
of how to address female offending in
Organisational Review and were agreed by
Scotland. The Scottish Government and
the SPS Advisory Board in July 2014.
SPS undertook an extensive consultation
with partners and communities with a view The Corporate Plan focuses on delivering
to the development of specific proposals. the change agenda, concentrating on
These proposals are likely to be published transforming SPS into an efficiently, fit
later in the year. The Women’s Regional
for the future, outcome-focused Service,
Unit at HMP Edinburgh is currently on hold with strong and effective links into the
whilst the new proposals for the custody
community. It sets the strategic priorities
of women are being developed.
and outlines how this will be delivered, and
how success will be measured.
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INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S REPORT TO
THE SCOTTISH PRISON
SERVICE,
THE AUDITOR GENERAL
FOR SCOTLAND AND THE
SCOTTISH PARLIAMENT

This report is made solely to the parties
to whom it is addressed in accordance
with the Public Finance and Accountability
(Scotland) Act 2000 and for no other
purpose. In accordance with paragraph
125 of the Code of Audit Practice
approved by the Auditor General for
Scotland, I do not undertake to have
responsibilities to members or officers,
in their individual capacities, or to third
parties.

I have audited the financial statements
of Scottish Prison Service for the
year ended 31 March 2015 under the
Public Finance and Accountability
(Scotland) Act 2000. The financial
statements comprise the Statement of
Comprehensive Net Expenditure, the
Statement of Financial Position, the
Statement of Cash Flows, the Statement
of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity and the
related notes. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in
their preparation is applicable law
and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union, and as interpreted and
adapted by the 2014-15 Government
Financial Reporting Manual (the 2014-15
FReM).

Respective Responsibilities
of Accountable Officer and
Auditor

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

As explained more fully in the
Statement of the Accountable Officer’s
Responsibilities, the Accountable Officer
is responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, and is also responsible for ensuring
the regularity of expenditure and income.
My responsibility is to audit and express
an opinion on the financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK
and Ireland) as required by the Code of
Audit Practice approved by the Auditor
General for Scotland. Those standards
require me to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for
Auditors. I am also responsible for giving
an opinion on the regularity of expenditure
and income in accordance with the Public
Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act
2000.

Scope of the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Opinion on Financial
Statements

In my opinion in all material respects:

An audit involves obtaining evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud
or error. This includes an assessment
of: whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the body’s circumstances
and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed; the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made
by the Accountable Officer; and the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
It also involves obtaining evidence about
the regularity of expenditure and income.
In addition, I read all the financial and
non-financial information in the annual
report to identify material inconsistencies
with the audited financial statements
and to identify any information that is
apparently materially incorrect based
on, or materially inconsistent with, the
knowledge acquired by me in the course
of performing the audit. If I become aware
of any apparent material misstatements,
irregularities, or inconsistencies I consider
the implications for my report.

In my opinion the financial statements:

>

>

>

>

Opinion on Regularity

give a true and fair view in accordance
with the Public Finance and
Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 and
directions made thereunder by the
Scottish Ministers of the state of the
body’s affairs as at 31 March 2015 and
of its net operating cost for the year
then ended;
have been properly prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union, as interpreted
and adapted by the 2014-15 FReM;
and
have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Public
Finance and Accountability (Scotland)
Act 2000 and directions made
thereunder by the Scottish Ministers.

>

the expenditure and income in the
financial statements were incurred
or applied in accordance with any
applicable enactments and guidance
issued by the Scottish Ministers, the
Budget (Scotland) Act covering the
financial year and sections 4 to 7 of
the Public Finance and Accountability
(Scotland) Act 2000; and
the sums paid out of the Scottish
Consolidated Fund for the purpose
of meeting the expenditure shown in
the financial statements were applied
in accordance with section 65 of the
Scotland Act 1998.

Opinion on Other Prescribed
Matters
In my opinion:
>

>

the part of the Remuneration Report
to be audited has been properly
prepared in accordance with the Public
Finance and Accountability (Scotland)
Act 2000 and directions made
thereunder by the Scottish Ministers;
and
the information given in the
Management Commentary for the
financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent
with the financial statements.

Matters on Which I am
Required to Report by
Exception
I am required to report to you if, in my
opinion:
>

adequate accounting records have not
been kept; or

>

the financial statements and the part
of the Remuneration Report to be
audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records; or

>

I have not received all the information
and explanations I require for my audit;
or

>

the Governance Statement does
not comply with guidance from the
Scottish Ministers.

I have nothing to report in respect of these
matters.

Angela Cullen (CPFA)
Assistant Director
Audit Scotland
18 George Street
Edinburgh
EH2 2QU
30 June 2015
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ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 March 2015

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE NET EXPENDITURE
for the year ended 31 March 2015

2014-15

2013-14

Note

£000

£000

2

(7,491)

(7,518)

Income
Income from all sources
Expenditure
Staff costs

3

163,029

150,176

Running costs

4

115,513

78,235

Other current expenditure

5

31,539

31,932

Total expenditure

310,081

260,343

Operating cost

302,590

252,825

11,181

11,302

313,771

264,127

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Other receivables

2015

2014

Note

£000

£000

6
7
11

1,037,601
1,167
106

987,753
987
107

1,038,874

988,847

Total non-current assets
Current assets
Assets classified as held for sale

6.1

1,370

1,839

Inventories

10

2,489

2,354

Trade and other receivables

11

5,839

7,136

Cash and cash equivalents

12

545

588

10,243

11,917

1,049,117

1,000,764

(35,606)

(38,877)

Total current assets
Total assets
Current liabilities

Interest payable and similar charges
Net operating cost

Trade and other payables

13

Provisions

14

Total current liabilities
Non-current assets less net current liabilities

(3,772)

(5,777)

(39,378)

(44,654)

1,009,739

956,110

(97,854)

(105,044)

Non-current liabilities

Other Comprehensive Net Expenditure

Other payables

13

Provisions

14

Total non-current liabilities
Assets less liabilities
2014-15

2013-14

£000

£000

Items that will not be reclassified to net operating costs:
Net gain on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

(45,176)

(56,831)

Total comprehensive net expenditure

268,595

207,296

(9,685)

(9,113)

(107,539)

(114,157)

902,200

841,953

Taxpayers’ equity
General fund

SOCTE

730,179

711,448

Revaluation reserve

SOCTE

172,021

130,505

902,200

841,953

Total taxpayers’ equity

Colin McConnell
Chief Executive
26 June 2015
The Chief Executive authorised these financial statements for issue on 26 June 2015.

The notes on pages 38 to 58 form part of these accounts.
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE NET EXPENDITURE

The notes on pages 38 to 58 form part of these accounts.
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SCOTTISH PRISON SERVICE
ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2014-2015

<37>

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 March 2015

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS’ EQUITY
for the year ended 31 March 2015

2014-15

2013-14

£000

£000

(313,771)

(264,127)

20

111

110

4

17,794

(14,318)

(248)

(53)

11,161

11,301

Increase in inventories

(135)

(277)

Decrease in trade receivables

1,297

387

Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Net operating cost
Notional charges
Depreciation and impairment
Profit on sale of tangible assets
Interest payable in net operating cost for financing

Increase in trade payables
Use of provisions
Net cash outflow from operating activities

809

7,167

(1,432)

303

(284,414)

(259,507)

General Fund

Revaluation
Reserve

Total
Reserves

£000

£000

£000

Balance as at 1 April 2013

654,034

78,651

732,685

Net funding from Scottish Government

316,454

0

316,454

(264,127)

56,831

(207,296)

110

0

110

4,977

(4,977)

0

Balance as at 31 March 2014

711,448

130,505

841,953

Net funding from Scottish Government

328,731

0

328,731

(313,771)

45,176

(268,595)

Note

Comprehensive Expenditure for the year
Non cash charges
Transfers between reserves

Comprehensive Expenditure for the year
Non cash charges

Cash flows from investing activities

Transfers between reserves
(28,983)

(42,041)

(611)

(1,081)

951

1,620

(28,643)

(41,502)

328,731

316,454

(4,556)

(4,173)

Interest element of finance leases and on balance sheet PFI/PPP contracts

(11,161)

(11,301)

Net financing

313,014

300,980

(43)

(29)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Proceeds of disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net cash outflow from investing activities

20

Balance at 31 March 2015

20

111

0

111

3,660

(3,660)

0

730,179

172,021

902,200

Cash flows from financing activities
From Consolidated Fund
Capital element of payments in respect of finance leases and on balance sheet
PFI/PPP contracts

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents in the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

12

588

617

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

12

545

588

The notes on pages 38 to 58 form part of these accounts.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

The notes on pages 38 to 58 form part of these accounts.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

The SPS commission professionally qualified firms to undertake a full revaluation of dwellings and other buildings at five-yearly
intervals. They follow the principles set out in the RICS Red Book and value on the basis of Open Market Value, Existing Use Value,
Depreciated Replacement Cost or Discounted Cash Flow as appropriate under RICS guidance for determining fair value.

1. Statement of Accounting Policies

In the intervening years, both specialised and non-specialised properties are valued on a rolling programme revaluing, on average,
four establishments each year. Appropriate indices provided by the Valuer are used to restate values in the intervening years
between full valuations. The next full valuation shall take place on 31 March 2017. The normal threshold for capitalisation of buildings
is £1,000.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 2014-15 Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM)
issued by HM Treasury and the accounts direction issued by Scottish Ministers under section 19(4) of the Public Finance and
Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000. The accounting policies contained in the FReM apply International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as adapted or interpreted for the public sector context. Where the FReM permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting
policy which is judged to be the most appropriate to the particular circumstances of SPS for the purpose of giving a true and fair view
has been selected. The particular policies adopted by SPS are described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with
items that are considered material to the accounts.

Plant and Equipment, Fixtures and Fittings, Motor Vehicles and Information Technology

The accounts are prepared using accounting policies, and, where necessary, estimation techniques, which are selected as the
most appropriate for the purpose of giving a true and fair view in accordance with the principles set out in International Accounting
Standard 8: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. Changes in accounting policies which do not give rise to
prior year adjustments are reported in the relevant note.

Assets under construction

Accounting Convention
The accounts have been prepared under the historic cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets.

Key sources of judgement and estimation uncertainty
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The Agency makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The Agency makes judgements in applying accounting policies. The estimates, assumptions and
judgements that have a significant risk of causing material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
financial statements within the next financial year are addressed below within the individual accounting policies and notes to the
accounts.
The most significant estimates made by the Agency relate to the valuation of SPS properties and the sums recorded in provisions
and contingent liabilities for staff and prisoner claims at 31 March. To assist the Agency with the estimates in valuing property the
SPS commission professionally qualified firms to undertake a full revaluation of dwellings and other buildings at five-yearly intervals
with a rolling programme of valuations in the years in between.
The SPS engage the services of the Scottish Government Legal Directorate, the Department of Work and Pensions and other
legal firms to assist in preparing estimates of potential liabilities for staff and prisoner claims. The SPS also engage the services
of professional accountancy firms to assist in the estimates for PFI/PPP Contracts and other Service Concession Arrangements.

Depreciated historic cost has been used as a proxy for the fair value of plant and equipment, fixtures and fittings, motor vehicles
and information technology. All of the assets in these categories have low values and short useful economic lives which realistically
reflect the life of the asset and a depreciation charge which provides a realistic reflection of consumption. The normal threshold for
capitalisation of assets in these categories is £1,000.
Assets under construction are carried at the costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Assets under construction are transferred to either the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment or intangible assets when completed and ready for use.

Revaluation reserve
Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are credited to the revaluation reserve in
taxpayers’ equity. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are charged against the revaluation reserve directly
in equity; all other decreases, including permanent diminutions as a result of a clear consumption of economic benefits or service
potential, are charged to the statement of comprehensive net expenditure.
Depreciation is charged to expenditure on the revalued amount of assets. An element of the depreciation therefore arises due to the
increase in valuation and is in excess of the depreciation that would be charged on the historical cost of assets. The amount relating
to this excess is a realised gain on revaluation and is transferred from the revaluation reserve to the general fund.

Depreciation
Land held under freehold is not depreciated.
Assets under construction are not depreciated until the asset under construction is capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.
Depreciation is provided on all other tangible and intangible fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the valuation, less estimated
residual values, of each asset evenly over its expected useful life. Asset lives are assessed on an asset by asset basis as follows:
Freehold buildings 	

Not exceeding 80 years

Buildings held under PFI/PPP contracts

Not exceeding 80 years

Change in Accounting Estimates

Fixed Plant and Equipment

Not exceeding 40 years

Indexation

Fixtures and Fittings

5 years

The indexation adjustment recorded in the 2014-15 accounts is calculated as the movement between the opening index as at
31 March 2014 and the closing index as at 31 March 2015. The index applied is based on a quarterly forecast which may be subject
to change. The actual index as at 31 March 2014 was higher than previously forecast.

Motor Vehicles

5 years

Moveable Plant and Equipment

5 years	 

Information Technology

2 years

Software

2 years

Plant and Equipment held under a finance lease

unexpired term of lease

Motor Vehicles held under Court Custody and 	
Prisoner Escort Service Contract

unexpired term of lease

Information Technology held under a finance lease

unexpired term of lease

The total net impairment reversal credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure is £16,270k. The impact of the
revision to the opening index included within this total is £6,043k.

Useful Lives
The Cabinet Secretary for Justice announced that the plans for a new female prison in Inverclyde would not go ahead as this did not
fit with his vision of how to address female offending in Scotland. As a result, the estimated useful life of HMP YOI Cornton Vale was
extended to four years whilst the new proposals for the custody of women are being developed. The impact of this change, in the
current year, is to reduce the amount charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for depreciation by £272k.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Title to the freehold land and buildings shown in the accounts is held in the name of the Scottish Ministers.

Dwellings and other buildings
Dwellings and other buildings are shown at fair value less subsequent depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset, and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount
of the asset.
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each statement of financial position date.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive net expenditure.
When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in the revaluation reserve are transferred to the general fund.

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

SCOTTISH PRISON SERVICE
ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2014-2015

<41>

Assets Held for Sale

Service Concessions and Private Finance Contracts

A property is derecognised and held for sale under IFRS5, Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations when all
of the following requirements are met:
>

It is available for immediate sale;

SPS assesses the contracts that utilise assets to determine if the contract represents a service concession arrangement under
the conditions of IFRIC 12, Service Concession Arrangements. Contracts which meet the recognition criteria are recognised in the
statement of financial position.

>

A plan is in place, supported by management and steps have been taken to conclude the sale; and

PFI/PPP Contracts

>

It is actively marketed and there is an expectation that the sale will be made in less than 12 months.

PFI/PPP transactions are accounted for in accordance with IFRIC 12, which sets out how PFI/PPP transactions are to be accounted
for in the private sector.

Assets held for sale include assets where SPS intends and expects to sell within one year from the date of classification of held for
sale. Assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amounts immediately prior to their classification as
held for sale and their fair value less costs to sell. Assets classified as held for sale are not subject to depreciation or amortisation.

Donated Assets
In Accordance with IAS16 Property, Plant and Equipment and the HM Treasury Financial Reporting Manual, Donated Assets are
capitalised at their fair value on receipt and this value is recognised as income and taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Net
Expenditure. The donated assets are revalued, depreciated and subject to impairment review in the same way as non-current
assets. Subsequent revaluations are taken to the revaluation reserve. Where the donator has imposed a condition that the future
economic benefits embodied in the donation are consumed as specified by the donor, or returned to them, then the receipt is
treated as deferred income.

The SPS has awarded Public Private Partnership (PPP) contracts, to design, construct, manage and finance prisons at HMP
Kilmarnock and HMP Addiewell. Both contracts were let for 25-year operating periods, commencing in March 1999 for HMP
Kilmarnock and in December 2008 for HMP Addiewell.
Assets and liabilities that are assessed to be on balance sheet are measured as follows:
>

Where the contract is separable between the service element, the interest charge and the infrastructure asset, the asset will be
measured in accordance with IAS 17 Leases, with the service element and the interest charge recognised as incurred over the
term of the concession arrangement.

>

Where there is a unitary payment stream that includes infrastructure and service elements that cannot be separated, the various
elements will be separated using estimation techniques including obtaining information from the operator or using the fair value
approach.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are valued on a historic cost basis.
Future economic benefit has been used as the criteria on assessing whether an intangible asset meets the definition and recognition
criteria of IAS38 where assets do not generate income. IAS38 defines future economic benefit as, “revenue from the sale of products
or services, cost savings, or other benefits resulting from the use of the asset by the entity”.
Amortisation is applied at rates calculated to write off the cost by equal instalments over the estimated useful life.

Financial Instruments
The SPS has considered its exposure to the following risks from the use of financial instruments:

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the funding risk to SPS that liabilities cannot be met when they fall due or can only be met at an uneconomic price.
SPS has no borrowings and relies primarily on funding from the Scottish Government for its cash requirements. SPS is therefore,
not exposed to liquidity risks.

Credit risk

The SPS recognises a liability for the capital value of the contract. That liability does not include the interest charge and service
elements, which are expensed annually through the statement of comprehensive net expenditure.
Assets are subsequently measured consistently with other assets in their class using IAS16 Property, Plant and Equipment, adopting
an appropriate asset revaluation approach. Liabilities are measured using the appropriate discount rate, taking account of the
reduction arising from capital payments included in the unitary payment stream. Any revenue received by SPS is recognised in line
with IAS18, Revenue.
In both of the projects, the financial models supplied by each project operators do not separately identify a costed lifecycle
maintenance programme. SPS has therefore opted not to set aside amounts from the unitary payment as payment for lifecycle
maintenance. Instead, when the project operators replace a capital asset, the fair value of this replacement item is recognised as
property, plant and equipment, balanced by a credit to the revaluation reserve. The replaced asset’s existing value is written out
of property, plant and equipment and either impaired or debited to the revaluation reserve.
In accordance with IAS 17, contingent rentals are defined as the “portion of the lease payments that is not fixed in amount but is
based on the future amount of a factor that changes other than with the passage of time”. Examples of contingent rents include
payments governed by movements in future price indices. Both financial models calculate contingent rent as follows:

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to SPS if a debtor or counter party fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises from the
trade receivables and other debtors.

>

The change in cash unitary charge arising from indexation is offset against the impact of applying the same indexation factor
to the real terms operating and lifecycle costs; and

SPS carries out appropriate credit checks on potential customers before significant sales transactions are entered into in order to
mitigate the credit risk from any single counterparty. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying value of
trade receivables on the statement of financial position.

>

Any remaining cash difference between the change in unitary charge and the indexation factor’s effect on operating costs
is charged to contingent rent.

Market risk

The Court Custody and Prisoner Escort Service Contract meets the requirements of IFRIC 12 and are recognised in these accounts
as a service concession arrangement.

Market risk is the risk to SPS that the value of an investment will decrease due to moves in market factors. SPS has no material
deposits and all material assets and liabilities are denominated in sterling. SPS is not, therefore, exposed to interest rate or currency
risk.

Cash and cash equivalents

Other Service Concession Arrangements

The infrastructure assets related to this contract are recognised as non-current assets. These assets are accounted for in the
same manner as other assets within the same class. The initial recognition of service concession infrastructure assets is at the
Contractor’s estimate of the assets’ fair value.

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, cash balances held by the Government Banking
Service and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

The useful economic life was determined as the shorter of the duration of the contract, or the life of the asset. The interest rate used
was derived by comparing the total payments under the contract to the element which constitutes capital repayment.

Inventories

Where the SPS meets the controls test under IFRIC 12, the underlying assets are recognised on the statement of financial position.
For leased assets, the finance lease is treated according to IAS17 Leases, and the asset and corresponding liability is capitalised.
This includes the deferred residual interest which is recognised as a long-term liability and reflects the liability to make future capital
payments to acquire the vehicles at the end of the contract period.

Stock and work in progress are valued as follows:
>

Finished goods are valued at the lower of cost or, where materially different, current replacement cost and net realisable value;

>

Work in progress is valued at the lower of cost, including appropriate overheads, and net realisable value.

Employee Benefits

Research and Development

Short-term Employee Benefits

Expenditure on research and development is treated as an operating cost in the year in which it is incurred.

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the year in which the service is received from employees. The
cost of annual leave and flexible working time entitlement earned but not taken by employees at the end of the year is recognised in
the financial statements to the extent that employees are permitted to carry-forward leave into the following year.
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Pension Costs and other post-retirement benefits

Third Party Assets

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme (PCSPS), which is an
unfunded multi-employer defined benefit scheme but the SPS is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities.
The scheme is accounted for as a defined contribution scheme under the multi-employer exemption permitted in IAS19. The SPS
recognises the expected cost of these elements on a systematic and rational basis over the period during which it benefits from
employees’ services by payment to the PCSPS of amounts calculated on an accruing basis. Liability for payment of future benefits is
a charge on the PCSPS.

SPS holds as custodian monies belonging to third parties. These assets are not recognised on the Statement of Financial Position
and are disclosed within the notes to the accounts.

>

Public Prisons;

In respect of the defined contribution schemes, the SPS recognises the contribution payable for the year. Early severance payment
obligations are expensed in the year in which the decision of the departure is agreed. Additional pension liabilities arising from early
retirements are not funded by the scheme except where the retirement is due to ill health. The full amount of the liability for the
additional costs is charged to the outturn statement at the time the SPS commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method
of payment.

>

Private Prisons; and

>

Court Custody and Prisoner Escort Services (CCPES).

In previous years, the SPS met the additional costs in respect of employees who retired early by paying the required amounts
annually to the PCSPS over the period between early departure and normal retirement date. The SPS provided for this in full when
the early retirement programme became binding by establishing a provision for the estimated payments.

Termination Benefits
SPS accounts for termination benefits in accordance with IAS 19 Employee benefits. Termination benefits are payable as a result of
a decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date, and the liability is recognised when the offer
of the benefits can no longer be withdrawn at the earlier of i) acceptance of the offer by the employee or ii) when a legal, regulatory
or contractual restriction on the ability to withdraw the offer takes effect.

Leases
Finance leases
In accordance with IAS 17 Leases, where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are borne by SPS, the asset
is recorded as Property, Plant and Equipment and a corresponding liability is recorded. The value at which both are recognised is the
lower of the fair value of the asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments. Assets held under finance leases are valued
at their fair values and are depreciated over the remaining period of the lease in accordance with IFRS.
The asset and liability are recognised at the inception of the lease, and are de-recognised when the liability is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The annual rental is split between the repayment of the liability and a finance cost. The annual finance cost is calculated by
applying the implicit interest rate to the outstanding liability and is charged to interest payable in the statement of comprehensive
net expenditure.

Segmental Reporting
The SPS currently operates three segments, namely:

IFRS 8 Segmental Reporting requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the
SPS that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to allocate resources to the segments and assess
their performance. The SPS reports segmental information within its consolidated operating cost statements which are prepared on
the basis of its portfolios.
Segmental information on assets and liabilities is not reported internally. As a result, segmental disclosure of these is not necessary.
An analysis of net expenditure by segment is provided in Note 24 to the accounts.

Accounting standards issued but not yet effective
There are a number of new accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been applied by the SPS in these financial
statements. The new standards that are considered relevant to SPS and the anticipated impact on the accounts are as follows:
>

IFRS 13 – Fair Value Measurement

This standard sets out the requirements for assets to be valued at fair value and is applied in full by the 2015-16 FReM only to assets
that are not held for their service potential (i.e. investment properties and assets held for sale). It also applies to operational assets
which are surplus to requirements where there are no restrictions on disposal which would prevent access to the market. IFRS 13
does not apply to operational assets which are in use delivering frontline services or back-office functions, and surplus assets with
restrictions on their disposal.
The adoption of this standard could change the measurement techniques used when determining fair value. The impact on the
financial statements has not been determined.

Operating leases
Other leases, that are not finance leases, are regarded as operating leases and the rentals are charged to expenditure on a straightline basis over the term of the lease. Operating lease incentives received are added to the lease rentals and charged to expenditure
over the life of the lease.

Leases of land and buildings
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land component is separated from the building component and the classification for each
is assessed separately. Leased land is treated as an operating lease unless title to the land is expected to transfer.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
In accordance with IAS37 provisions, including provisions for staff and prisoner claims, are recognised in the statement of financial
position when the SPS has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected, risk adjusted, future cash flows using the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury.

Related Party Transactions
Material related party transactions are disclosed in the notes to the accounts in line with the requirements of IAS24.

Value Added Tax
The majority of services provided by the SPS fall outwith the scope of Value Added Tax (VAT). However, the manufacturing and sale of
goods to external bodies is subject to VAT on both inputs and outputs. The SPS can recover this input VAT as well as VAT on certain
contracted-out services. Income is shown in the accounts net of recoverable VAT.

Insurance
With the exception of Public Private Partnership contracts, no outside insurance is affected against fire, explosion, common law, third
party and similar risks, except where there is a statutory requirement to do so.
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2. Income from all Sources

Average number of persons employed
2014-15

2013-14

£000

£000

1,207

934

Rental income – garages

4

4

– quarters

3

3

1,743

2,266

Income from sales

General revenue
Profit from sale of fixed assets
Income from prisoner’s canteen

248

53

4,286

4,258

7,491

7,518

3. Staff Numbers and Related Costs
Staff costs comprise:

2014-15

2013-14

£000

£000

130,924

119,531

Social security costs

9,671

8,612

Other pension costs

22,655

22,490

163,250

150,633

(221)

(457)

163,029

150,176

Wages and salaries

Sub total
Less recoveries in respect of outward secondments
Total net costs

Included in the Wages and Salaries figure is a payment of £6,549k which relates to the one-off payment of £2,000 to operational staff
in pay ranges C, D and E. These payments were made to prison officers and operational first line managers following an agreement
reached between the Prison Officers Association (Scotland) and SPS. That agreement committed both parties to continue
participating in the development of the 21st Century Prison Officer role, with a view to presenting conclusions within 2 years. The
agreement was made in a manner which suitably rewards frontline staff for the transitions they have and continue to make. It is the
foundation for solid industrial relationships and eliminates the risk of any significant disruption to service over the period outlined.
These payments attracted Employers’ National Insurance contributions.
The Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme (PCSPS) is an unfunded multi-employer defined benefit scheme but the Agency is unable
to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities. The Scheme Actuary valued the scheme as at 31 March 2012. You can find
details in the resource accounts of the Cabinet Office: Civil Superannuation www.civilservice.gov.uk/my-civil-service/pensions.
For 2014-15, employers’ contributions of £22,544k were payable to the PCSPS (2013-14 £21,900k) at one of five rates in the range
16.7% to 25.8% of pensionable earnings, based on salary bands. The Scheme Actuary reviews employer contributions usually every
four years following a full scheme valuation. From 2015-16, the rates will be in the range from 20.0% to 27.9%. The contribution
rates are set to meet the cost of the benefits accruing during 2014-15 to be paid when the member retires and not the benefits paid
during this period to existing pensioners.

The average number of whole-time equivalent persons employed during the year was as follows.
2014-15

2013-14

4,380

4,284

4

5

4,384

4,289

Directly employed
Other
Total

3.1 Reporting of Civil Service and other compensation schemes – exit packages
Number of compulsory
redundancies

Number of other
departures agreed

Total number of exit
packages by cost band

<£10,000

-

4 (7)

4 (7)

£10,000 - £25,000

-

3 (6)

3 (6)

£25,000 - £50,000

-

2 (5)

2 (5)

Exit package cost band

£50,000 - £100,000

-

0 (6)

0 (6)

£150,000 - £200,000

-

0 (2)

0 (2)

Total number of exit packages

-

9 (26)

9 (26)

-

£153,379
(£997,548)

£153,379
(£997,548)

Total resource cost/£
Comparative data is shown (in brackets) for previous year.

Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in accordance with the provisions of the Civil Service Compensation
Scheme, a statutory scheme made under the Superannuation Act 1972. Exit costs are accounted for in full in the year the decision of
departure is agreed. Where the agency has agreed early retirements, the additional costs are met by the agency and not by the Civil
Service pension scheme. Ill-health retirement costs are met by the pension scheme and are not included in the table.
The above table includes exit costs relating to Voluntary Exit Schemes (VES) approved by Cabinet Office and capability schemes
approved by SPS. During 2014-15 there were no VES exits (2013-14, 9 exits at a total cost of £513k) and 9 exits under capability
schemes at a cost of £153k (2013-14, 17 exits at a total cost of £485k).

4. Running Costs
These comprise:

2014-15
£000

2013-14
£000

Repairs and maintenance

14,015

9,755

Depreciation and impairment

17,794

(14,318)

Other staff-related costs

5,650

7,056

Heat, light, telephone etc.

11,554

11,556

7,002

6,066

1,016

1,134

– Other

279

262

Finance Leases

25

90

Employees can opt to open a partnership pension account, a stakeholder pension with an employer contribution. Employers’
contributions of £36k (2013-14 £30k) were paid to one or more of a panel of three appointed stakeholder pension providers.
Employer contributions are age-related and range from 3% to 12.5% of pensionable earnings. Employers also match employee
contributions up to 3% of pensionable earnings. In addition, contributions of £2k which is 0.8% of pensionable earnings were payable
to the PCSPS to cover the cost of future provision of lump sum death benefits on death in service and ill health retirement of these
employees.

Rates

Contributions due to the partnership pension providers at the statement of financial position date were nil. Contributions prepaid
at that date were nil.

PFI/PPP service charges

32,939

31,377

Court Custody and Prisoner Escort Service

20,778

20,889

During the reporting year twenty one persons (2013-14 eight persons) retired early on ill-health grounds: the total additional
accrued pension liabilities in the year amounted to £31k (2013-14 £31k).

General expenditure

4,350

4,258

111

110

115,513

78,235

Rentals in operating leases
– Land and buildings

Notional charges (see Note 20)

Depreciation is applied to tangible, donated and intangible fixed assets. It includes £16,270k credit (2013-14 £45,865k credit), in
relation to impairments arising upon revaluation of land and buildings.
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5. Other Current Expenditure
2014-15

2013-14

£000

£000

14,267

14,791

These comprise:
Victualling and other supplies

3,098

3,034

14,174

14,106

31,539

31,932

Prisoner earnings
Other costs

Other costs include fees paid for education contracts, £4,245k (2013-14 £3,993k) and social work costs £5,389k (2013-14 £5,217k).

Land Buildings Dwellings

Cost or Valuation

£000

£000

66,591

Completed Assets under
Construction

Motor
Vehicles

Plant &
Equip

Cost or Valuation

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

57,981

314,554

453,643

11,184

23,745

Additions
Completed Assets under
Construction

0

0

0

96

0

42,748

37,461

0

Revaluation

10,575

(2,390)

40,969

0

0

0

0

0

49,154

Impairment

(1,589)

13,894

27,666

0

0

0

0

0

39,971

At 1 April 2013

Disposals

Including Donated
Assets

Additions

Land Buildings Dwellings

Reclassification

6. Property, Plant and Equipment

At 1 April 2014

Including Donated
Assets

Comp Fixtures
Equip & Fittings

At 31 March 2014

Motor
Vehicles

Plant &
Equip

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

368,805

559,739

11,241

26,336

6,073

641

0

0

0

59

479

1,410

33

20,288

22,269

3,263

4,272

6,703

0

154

875

0

(15,267)

0

Comp Fixtures
Equip & Fittings

AUC

Total

£000

£000

£000

6,309

747

60,115

928,278

3,365

287

8

28,838

32,594

735

0

0

(80,944)

0

(375)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

(375)

(1)

(1)

0

(39)

(1,509)

(523)

(114)

(264)

(2,451)

66,591

368,805

559,739

11,241

26,336

6,073

641

7,745 1,047,171

AUC

Total

Depreciation

£000

£000

At 1 April 2013

0

9,046

12,034

2,263

16,887

4,117

691

0

45,038

Charge

0

10,639

15,171

1,410

2,373

1,336

21

0

30,950

7,745 1,047,171

Revaluation

0

(3,571)

(4,107)

0

0

0

0

0

(7,678)

Impairment

0

(3,820)

(2,990)

0

0

0

0

0

(6,810)

Disposals

0

0

0

(33)

(1,422)

(513)

(114)

0

(2,082)

0

12,294

20,108

3,640

17,838

4,940

598

0

59,418

Revaluation

3,454

17,166

26,633

0

0

0

0

0

47,253

At 31 March 2014

Impairment

(3,073)

8,513

13,173

0

0

0

0

(1,256)

17,357

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Carrying Value at
31 March 2014

66,591

356,511

539,631

7,601

8,498

1,133

43

7,745

987,753

(9)

(2)

0

(167)

(1,196)

(49)

(40)

(259)

(1,722)

Carrying Value at
31 March 2013

57,981

305,508

441,609

8,921

6,858

2,192

56

60,115

883,240

70,226

398,754

606,248

11,133

25,773

8,309

634

66,591

316,718

463,983

296

8,497

1,133

43

7,745

865,006

Finance Leased

0

0

0

7,305

1

0

0

0

7,306

On-balance sheet
PFI/PPP

0

39,793

75,648

0

0

0

0

0

115,441

66,591

356,511

539,631

7,601

8,498

1,133

43

7,745

987,753

Reclassification
Disposals
At 31 March 2015

11,251 1,132,328
Asset financing:

Depreciation
At 1 April 2014

0

12,294

20,108

3,640

17,838

4,940

598

0

59,418

Charge

0

11,026

17,255

1,424

2,510

1,416

18

0

33,649

Revaluation

0

(1,086)

3,163

0

0

0

0

0

2,077

Impairment

0

1,630

(637)

0

0

0

0

0

993

Disposals

0

0

0

(160)

(1,160)

(50)

(40)

0

(1,410)

At 31 March 2015

0

23,864

39,889

4,904

19,188

6,306

576

0

94,727

Carrying Value at
31 March 2015

70,226

374,890

566,359

6,229

6,585

2,003

58

Carrying Value at
31 March 2014

66,591

356,511

539,631

7,601

8,498

1,133

43

7,745

987,753

70,226

333,268

487,352

237

6,585

2,003

58

11,251

910,980

Owned

Carrying Value at 31
March 2014

11,251 1,037,601

Asset financing:
Owned
Finance Leased

0

0

0

5,992

0

0

0

0

5,992

On-balance sheet
PFI/PPP

0

41,622

79,007

0

0

0

0

0

120,629

Carrying Value at
31 March 2015

70,226

374,890

566,359

6,229

6,585

2,003

58
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Two specialised properties, one non-specialised property, thirty-one garage sites, a staff quarter and nineteen surplus land sites
were valued at 31 March 2015. The total value of these properties at that date was £13,920k.
The Valuation Office Agency valued the following properties at 31 March 2015. The SPS College and the specialised training facility
at Fauldhouse were valued as specialised assets at a depreciated replacement cost (DRC) of £7,355k. The central store at SPS
Fauldhouse was valued on an existing use value (EUV) basis at £1,000k. The remaining sites were valued on an open market value
(OMV) basis at £5,564k. Included within surplus land valuation is the surplus land at HMP Edinburgh currently categorised as an Asset
Held for Sale: the value of the land is £1,370k.
The Scottish Government’s Infrastructure and Investment Plan 2011 (revised February 2015) includes details of prison development
plans over the next few years. As a result of the planned modernisation of the estate, the remaining lives for the buildings, which
are scheduled for demolition and closure, have been adjusted to reflect the planned period to demolition and closure using the
development plans to 31 March 2015. The total depreciation charged to the statement of comprehensive net expenditure is shown
in Note 4.
Included under land, building and dwellings are the properties for the Public Private Partnerships (PPPs) at HMP Kilmarnock and HMP
Addiewell. At the end of these 25-year contracts, the assets revert to SPS at nil cost.
The court custody and prisoner escort service is included within Motor Vehicles; the contract is accounted for in the same manner
as other assets with the same class. The underlying value of the infrastructure assets are the contractor’s estimate of fair value. In
accordance with IFRIC12 the infrastructure assets related to this contract are recognised as non-current assets.
There is no requirement in the FReM for donated assets to be separately disclosed. The donated asset is included within Buildings.
The donated asset comprises a Visitors’ Reception at HMP Edinburgh provided to the SPS in March 2000 with the restriction that it
be leased to the developer, for a peppercorn rent for a period of 35 years, to be used solely as a Visitors’ Reception Centre. The Net
Book Value at 31 March 2015 was £1,164k.

7. Intangible Assets
The SPS’s intangible fixed assets comprise:
Software

AUC

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

3,091

3,187

450

6,728

0

78

533

611

230

259

(489)

0

Cost
At 1 April 2014
Additions
Completed AUC
Disposals
At 31 March 2015

0

(28)

(15)

(43)

3,321

3,496

479

7,296

3,091

2,650

0

5,741

Amortisation
At 1 April 2014
Charge

0

416

0

416

Disposals

0

(28)

0

(28)

3,091

3,038

0

6,129

230

458

479

1,167

0

537

450

987

230

458

479

1,167

At 31 March 2015
Carrying Value as at 31 March 2015

6.1 Assets Held for Sale

Information
Technology

Carrying Value as at 31 March 2014

2014-15

2013-14

Property, Plant and Equipment

£000

£000

At 1 April

1,839

3,580

0

375

Information
Technology

Software

AUC

Total

(94)

(916)

£000

£000

£000

£000

Disposals

(375)

(1,200)

At 31 March

1,370

1,839

3,091

2,556

0

5,647

0

631

450

1,081

3,091

3,187

450

6,728

2,884

2,261

0

5,145

207

389

0

596

3,091

2,650

0

5,741

0

537

450

987

207

295

0

502

0

537

450

987

Reclassification
Revaluation

Asset financing: Owned

Cost
At 1 April 2013
Additions

The Asset Held for Sale is the surplus land sites at HMP Edinburgh. The site was re-categorised as an Asset Held for Sale at 31 March
2013. The valuation at 31 March 2014 was £1,464k. The site was re-visited by the Valuation Office Agency at the 31 March 2015 and
re-valued at £1,370k.
The sale of HMP Peterhead, which was valued at 31 March 2014 at £375k, took place in June 2014.

At 31 March 2014
Amortisation
At 1 April 2013
Charge
At 31 March 2014
Carrying Value as at 31 March 2014
Carrying Value as at 31 March 2013
Asset financing: Owned
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8. Financial Instruments

11. Trade Receivables and Other Current Assets

As the cash requirements of the SPS are met through the spending review process, financial instruments play a more limited role
in creating and managing risk than in a non-public sector body. The majority of financial instruments relate to contracts to buy
non‑financial items in line with the SPS’s expected purchase and usage requirements and the SPS is therefore exposed to little
credit, liquidity or market risk.

11.1 Analysis by Type
2014-15

2013-14

£000

£000

Recoverable VAT

4,444

4,227

243

336

400

366

Amounts due within one year:

9. Impairment Analysis
Property, Plant and Equipment

2014-15

2013-14

Trade receivables

£000

£000

Other receivables
Prepayments and accrued income

4,423

3,014

Impairment reversal

(20,693)

(48,879)

Revaluation reserve

28

0

(16,242)

(45,865)

Impairment charge

Total

Other receivables

The impairment charge of £4,423k to the SOCNE includes £94k downward valuation of the two surplus land sites at HMP Edinburgh
classified as Assets Held for Sale as at 31 March 2015. The remaining £4,329k charge is the impairment of Inverclyde following the
Cabinet Secretary’s announcement that Inverclyde would not proceed. This change in Scottish Government policy resulted in a
write-off of the design fees incurred to date of £1,256k from Assets under Construction. Additionally, following completion of the
demolition and enabling works, the Valuation Office Agency valued the site resulting in an impairment charge of £3,073k. Both
charges were taken to the SOCNE.

106

107

Amounts falling due
after more than one year

2014-15

2013-14

2014-15

2013-14

£000

£000

£000

£000

4,622

4,455

0

0

Balances with local authorities

1

3

0

0

Balances with NHS Boards

5

14

0

0

Balances with other central government bodies

Intra-government balances

4,628

4,472

0

0

Balances with bodies external to government

1,211

2,664

106

107

Total receivables at 31 March

5,839

7,136

106

107

2014-15

2013-14

12. Cash and Cash Equivalents

10. Inventories
2014-15

7,136

11.2 Intra-Government Balances
Amounts falling due
within one year

The amounts taken through the revaluation reserve reflect the downward valuation of surplus land sites at Castle Huntly.

2,207

Amounts due after more than one year:

The impairment reversal and charge reflect the valuation of two specialised and one non-specialised property, 31 garage sites,
one staff quarter, and 19 surplus land sites by the District Valuer and the application of indexation to the remaining properties at
31 March 2015. The impact of this resulted in a net impairment reversal of £16,270k.
Impairment reversals of £20,693k represent reversals of impairments charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure
(SOCNE) in previous years: the most significant reversals are HMP Addiewell (£4,958k), HMP Glenochil (£5,420k), HMP Perth
(£4,936k) and HMP Shotts (£4,733k).

752
5,839

2013-14

£000

£000

588

617

The main categories of stock held are:

£000

£000

Balance as at 1 April

Consumables

1,180

1,030

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

(43)

(29)

Balance as at 31 March

545

588

424

423

88

112

Works, estates and locks

749

686

Industries raw materials, work in progress and finished goods for resale

963

989

(403)

(351)

2,489

2,354

Provision for obsolete stock

The following balances at 31 March were held at:
Government Banking Service
Commercial banks
Cash in hand
Balance at 31 March
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13. Trade Payables and Other Current Liabilities

14. Provisions for Liabilities and Charges

13.1 Analysis by Type:

2014-15

2014-15

2014-15

2013-14

2013-14

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Prisoner
Claims

Injury
Benefit

Demolition
Costs

Other
Charges

Total

Total

Balance at 1 April

3,241

8,017

1,377

2,255

14,890

14,587

Provided in the year

1,089

1,216

0

589

2,894

4,829

Provisions utilised in the year

(581)

(443)

(494)

(414)

(1,932)

(2,159)

Other taxation and social security

2,807

2,849

Trade payables

5,033

6,520

Other payables

2014-15

2014-15
Amounts due within one year:

Accruals and deferred income

2014-15

17,122

19,606

2,605

2,439

Unwinding of discount
Provisions not required written back

0

11

0

0

11

(15)

(1,042)

0

(773)

(591)

(2,406)

(2,352)

2,707

8,801

110

1,839

13,457

14,890

2014-15

2014-15

2014-15

2014-15

2014-15

2013-14

545

588

7,494

6,875

35,606

38,877

96,505

103,998

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Deferred residual interest

954

954

Other accruals

395

92

Prisoner
Claims

Injury
Benefit

Demolition
Costs

Other
Charges

Total

Total

97,854

105,044

Amounts due to Justice Department
PFI/PPP and other service concession arrangements <1 year

Balance at 31 March
Analysis of expected timing of discounted flows

Amounts due after more than one year:
PFI/PPP and other service concession arrangements >1 year

The deferred residual interest of £954k (2013-14 £954k) relates to the residual value of vehicles under the Court Custody and Prison
Escort Service concession contract which revert to the lessor for nil consideration at the end of the contract.

2,707

409

110

546

3,772

5,777

Later than one year and not later than five years

0

1,584

0

1,286

2,870

2,936

Later than five years

0

6,808

0

7

6,815

6,177

Balance at 31 March

2,707

8,801

110

1,839

13,457

14,890

Not later than one year

13.2 Intra-Government Balances
Amounts falling due
within one year

Balances with other central government bodies
Balances with local authorities

Amounts falling due
after more than one year

2014-15

2013-14

2014-15

2013-14

£000

£000

£000

£000

5,909

6,263

0

0

33

135

0

0

1

18

0

0

5,943

6,416

0

0

Balances with bodies external to government

29,663

32,461

97,854

105,044

Total payables at 31 March

35,606

38,877

97,854

105,044

Balances with NHS Boards
Intra-government balances

Prisoner Claims
In the past 10 years a number of court cases have been brought by prisoners which concerned prison conditions. Successive
decisions by the courts have provided clarity on the law and as a result of these, and decisions by Scottish Ministers, a number of
cases have been settled. These have been reported in previous Annual Reports. In addition Section 14 of the Scotland Act 2012
repealed the Convention Rights Proceedings (Amendment) (Scotland) Act 2009 and amended the Scotland Act 1998 to provide a
one year time limit for convention rights claims similar to that contained in the Human Rights Act 1998. This means that a convention
rights claim brought against Scottish Ministers must be brought against Scottish Ministers within one year unless a court or tribunal
considers it “equitable having regard to all circumstances” to allow a claim out with this time limit.
In light of successive decisions by the courts and decisions by Scottish Ministers the number of cases outstanding has fallen, and this
has been reflected in a fall in the provision. In the past financial year 7 court cases (2014: 46) have been settled and 212 (2014: 224)
remain in court.

Demolition Costs
The Scottish Government’s Infrastructure Investment Plan 2011 (revised February 2015) sets out a commitment to further
modernise and improve the Scottish Prison Service Estate, including the replacement and disposal of a number of existing prisons.
Included within provisions are amounts for the demolition costs of prisons planned for closure and disposal where a constructive
obligation arises or where required for site clearance.

Injury Benefits
Injury Benefits include estimates of amounts payable to former employees for loss of earnings under the Civil Service Injury Benefit
Scheme.

Other Charges
Other charges includes estimates of amounts payable for staff compensation and related costs and early retirement costs. Provision
has also been made for dilapidation costs in respect of Calton House following renewal of the lease until October 2017.
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15. Capital Commitments

17.2 Charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure and Future Commitments

Contracted capital commitments at 31 March not otherwise included in these accounts:

Property, Plant and Equipment

2014-15

2013-14

£000

£000

2,238

13,125

16. Commitments under Leases

The total amount charged in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure in respect of the service element of on-balance
sheet PFI (and other service concession arrangements) transactions was £56,309k (2013-14 £54,481k) and the payments to which
the SPS is committed are as follows:
2014-15
£000

£000

55,525

53,924

Later than one year and not later than five years

217,649

232,067

Later than five years

538,238

579,345

811,412

865,336

Not later than one year

16.1 Operating Leases
Total future minimum lease payments under operating leases are given in the table below for each of the following periods:
Obligations under operating leases for the following periods comprise:
2014-15

2013-14

£000

£000

Not later than one year

31

39

Later than one year and not later than five years

48

79

79

118

Land

648

818

1,019

1,662

1,667

2,480

Not later than one year

655

386

Later than one year and not later than five years

982

447

1,637

833

Later than one year and not later than five years
Other

17.1 Details of the imputed finance lease charges are given in the table below for each of the
following periods:
2013-14

£000

£000

Rentals due not later than one year

15,498

15,444

Rentals due later than one year and not later than five years

43,459

49,540

130,477

139,894

189,434

204,878

Less interest element

(85,436)

(94,005)

Present value of obligations

103,998

110,873

2014-15

2013-14

£000

£000

Details of the minimum service charge are given in the table below for each of the following periods:

Service charge due later than one year and not later than five years
Service charge due later than five years
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In March 2011, the SPS awarded a contract for Court Custody and Prisoner Escort service to G4S. The contract was let for a
seven‑year period with an option to extend for a further three years. The service commenced in January 2012. The vehicles provided
with the service are treated as on balance sheet in accordance with IFRIC 12, Service Concession Arrangements. The minimum lease
payments that SPS is committed to make over the remainder of the respective contract periods are recorded in the above table.
The annual payments will vary over the remaining life of the contract in accordance with the specified indexation and unitary charge
mechanisms.
In the event of termination of these contracts, in accordance with Scottish Government guidance, the SPS has committed to pay
certain amounts to the contractor according to defined formulae in the respective contracts. The specific value of the termination
sum would depend on the reason for termination and the timing in relation to the contract expiry date.

18. Contingent Liabilities

2014-15

Service charge due within one year

The SPS has awarded Public Private Partnership (PPP) contracts, to design, construct, manage and finance prisons at HMP
Kilmarnock and HMP Addiewell. Both contracts were let for 25-year operating periods, commencing in March 1999 for HMP
Kilmarnock and in December 2008 for HMP Addiewell. Both contracts are treated as on balance sheet in accordance with IFRIC
12, Service Concession Arrangements. The minimum lease payments that SPS is committed to make over the remainder of the
respective contract periods are recorded in the above table in respect of HMP Kilmarnock and HMP Addiewell. The annual payments
will vary over the remaining life of each contract in accordance with the specified indexation and unitary charge mechanisms.

A copy of the contracts for HMP Kilmarnock, HMP Addiewell and Court Custody and Prisoner Escort Services are available on the
SPS website www.sps.gov.uk.

17. Commitments under PFI Contracts and Other Service Concession Arrangements

Rentals due later than five years

PFI Contracts

Other Service Concession Arrangements

Buildings
Not later than one year

2013-14

7,494

6,875

16,120

20,358

80,384

83,640

103,998

110,873

At 31 March the SPS had outstanding contingent liabilities totalling:
2014-15

2013-14

£000

£000

Prisoner Claims

308

11,212

Other Charges

51

129

359

11,341

Contingent liabilities for prisoner claims have been included in respect of prisoner compensation and expenses for potential liability
in a number of cases where challenges have been made against SPS but which await court consideration. The courts have issued
some decisions in these areas which have brought clarity to the exposure and the mitigating actions taken during 2014-15 along
with the passage of time have resulted in the significant decrease in contingent liability. This is because challenges for breaches of
Convention Rights must be brought within one year of the act complained.
SPS also recognises the potential cost of retrospectively applying VAT on invoices for outward secondees and payments for inward
secondees. The amount of this is unquantifiable as it cannot reliably be estimated at this time.
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19. Losses and Special Payments

23. Third Party Assets

The following losses and special payments have been included in the accounts:

At 31 March 2015 the SPS operated bank accounts holding funds in respect of prisoners monies and common good funds. The
balances on these accounts are held on behalf of prisoners and are therefore not included in the financial statements. The value
of the funds held in these accounts are set out in the tables below.

2014-15

19.1 Losses Statement

2013-14

Cases

£000

Cases

£000

Cash losses

208

15

211

2

Losses of accountable stores

319

246

302

36

2014-15

2013-14

£000

£000

Fruitless payments
Total

1

2

0

0

528

263

513

38

725

751

10,875

10,974

(10,856)

(11,000)

744

725

2014-15

2013-14

£000

£000

Balance as at 1 April

177

146

Funds paid in during the year

475

508

(447)

(477)

205

177

Balance as at 1 April
Funds paid in during the year

19.2 Special Payments
Special payments

23.1 Prisoners’ Funds

Funds paid out during the year
333

1,198

375

1,635

Balance as at 31 March

23.2 Common Good Fund

Special payments include amounts settled for prisoner compensation and their related costs (see notes 14 and 18).

19.3 Other Notes
On 26 January 2015 the Cabinet Secretary for Justice announced that the current plans for a female prison in Inverclyde would
not go ahead as this did not fit with his vision of how to address female offending in Scotland. As a result of this change in Scottish
Government policy, SPS has recorded a constructive loss of £1,256k which relates to the design fees. The Scottish Government
and SPS are in the process of a period of extensive engagement with key partners with a view to investing in smaller regional and
community based custodial facilities across the country.

Funds paid out during the year
Balance as at 31 March

The Common Good Fund in each establishment exists for the benefit of the prisoners in custody at that establishment.

20. Notional Charges

24. Analysis of Net Expenditure by Segment

The following notional charge has been included in the accounts:

The SPS currently operates three segments, namely:

2014-15

2013-14

>

Public Prisons;

£000

£000

>

Private Prisons; and

Statutory Audit Services

96

95

>

Court Custody and Prisoner Escort Services (CCPES).

Other Reviews

15

15

111

110

Total Auditor’s Remuneration
The audit fee is a notional charge, as notified to us by our auditors, Audit Scotland.

21. Key Financial Target
The annual average cost per prisoner place, which excludes capital charges, exceptional payments and the cost of the Court Custody
and Prisoner Escort contract, was £34,102 (2013-14 £33,153).

The SPS is legally required to deliver custodial services for all those sent to it by the courts. During 2014-15 there were 13 publicly
managed prisons and two privately-managed prisons. The location of each of the establishments is listed on Appendix 1 of the SPS
Annual Report and Accounts 2014-15. SPS agrees a service framework with each public sector prison and manages private sector
providers of prisons and custodial services under contract arrangements. Copies of the services agreements with the publicly
managed prisons and contracts with the privately managed providers of custodial services are available on the SPS website
(www.sps.gov.uk).
In March 2011, SPS awarded a contract to G4S and Justice Services (UK) Ltd. The contract commenced in January 2012. The
contract itself covers a range of prisoner transport and security-related services which are delivered to a number of agencies,
namely:

For information purposes, the actual annual average cost per prisoner place, calculated on a resource accounting basis (including
depreciation and impairment charges), in 2014-15 was £36,302 (2013-14 £31,250).

>

SPS;

>

Scottish Court Service;

The actual annual average cost per prisoner place including exceptional payments in 2014-15 was £34,096 (2013-14 £33,091).
Exceptional payments include charges/release of provisions for prisoner compensation and related costs.

>

Police Scotland; and

>

The State Hospital and other NHS secure Units.

22. Related Party Transactions
The SPS is an Executive Agency of the Scottish Government. The Scottish Government is regarded as a related party with which the
SPS has various material transactions during the year. In 2014-15, none of the Board Members, members of key management staff
or other related parties has undertaken any material transactions with the SPS.
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Net operating cost

Public
Prisons

Private
Prisons

CCPES

2014-15

£000

£000

£000

£000

260,054

32,939

20,778

313,771
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25. Events after the Reporting Period

APPENDIX TO THE ACCOUNTS

In accordance with the requirements of IAS10, events after the reporting period are considered up to the date on which the accounts
are authorised for issue.

The Future of the Custodial Estate for Women
On 22 June 2015, the Cabinet Secretary for Justice announced his plans for the future of the custodial estate for women. The
announcement confirmed that there would be a new national unit at HMP & YOI Cornton Vale and community custody units
throughout Scotland. Existing plans for the Women’s Regional Unit at Edinburgh would not go ahead.

SCOTTISH PRISON SERVICE
DIRECTION BY THE SCOTTISH MINISTERS

The Accounting Officer has concluded that the impact of this announcement on the financial statements would be to increase the
amount charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, for impairment, by £441k and reduce the carrying value of
property, plant and equipment in the Statement of Financial Position by £441k.
As this is a further change in Scottish Government policy, a constructive loss of £441k would be recorded.

in accordance with section 19(4) of the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000
1.  The statement of accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 2006 and subsequent years shall comply with the accounting
principles and disclosure requirements of the edition of the Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) which is in force for the
year for which the statement of accounts are prepared.
2. The accounts shall be prepared so as to give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure, recognised gains and losses, and
cash flows for the financial year, and of the state of affairs as at the end of the financial year.
3.  This direction shall be reproduced as an appendix to the statement of accounts. The direction given on 29 March 2001 is hereby revoked.

Signed by the authority of the Scottish Ministers
Dated
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APPENDIX 1

APPENDIX 2

LOCATION OF ESTABLISHMENTS

AVERAGE DAILY POPULATION AND MAXIMUM NUMBER BY PENAL ESTABLISHMENT: 2014-15
AVERAGE DAILY POPULATION1

Scotland’s Prisons
01
02
03
04
05
06
07
08

Addiewell
Barlinnie
Castle Huntly
Cornton Vale
Dumfries
Edinburgh
Glenochil
Grampian

09 Greenock
10 Headquarters
11 Inverness
12 	Kilmarnock
13 Low Moss
14 Perth
15 Polmont
16 Shotts

MAXIMUM NUMBER2

Men

Women

Total

Men

Women

Total

700

-

700

710

-

710

1,303

-

1,303

1,433

-

1,433

-

213

213

-

264

264

Dumfries

174

-

174

186

-

186

Edinburgh

775

89

864

829

107

931

Glenochil

635

-

635

678

-

678

Grampian

248

42

291

343

56

395

Greenock

183

52

235

195

56

248

Inverness

118

2

120

139

3

141

Kilmarnock

501

-

501

518

-

518

Low Moss

737

-

737

764

-

764

Open Estate

252

-

252

276

-

276

Perth

643

-

643

689

-

689

Shotts

531

-

531

540

-

540

Cornton Vale

-

20

20

29

29

Grampian

5

5

11

29

501

-

501

546

7,306

425

7,731

7,480

Prisons
Addiewell
Barlinnie
Cornton Vale

Young Offenders Institutions3

Polmont
Total

11

04
09

468

7,921

08

14

13
02

29
546

03

07
15 10
01 06
16

12

Source:

Notes:

Data are based on the Scottish Prison
Service PR2 information management
system archived aggregate tables.
Figures published prior to 2012-13 were
from datasets managed by Scottish
Government Justice Analytical Services,
but it has not been possible to replicate
this analysis since 2011-12 due to
ongoing technical issues. The most
notable difference between the two data
sources is that the figures shown in this
annual report do not include prisoners
classified as unlawfully at large.

1. Components may not add to totals
due to rounding.
2.  	 The figures in these columns cannot
be added to produce a total maximum
number as the individual establishment
figures relate to different days during
the year. Maximum figures for Cornton
Vale and Grampian include the YOI
population.

3. A small number of persons aged 21 or
over may be held in young offender
institutions and small number of young
offenders under 21 may be held in
adult prisoners if warranted by special
circumstances, such as proximity to
courts.
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APPENDIX 3

APPENDIX 4

AVERAGE DAILY POPULATION IN ESTABLISHMENTS BY TYPE OF CUSTODY: 2014-15

ABSCONDS FROM CUSTODY 2014-15

Remand: sub total

1,525

Persons under sentence: sub total
Under four years

3,385

Four years and over (including life sentences and lifer recalls)

2,820

Total

7,731

Source:

Notes:

Data are based on the Scottish Prison
Service PR2 information management
system archived aggregate tables.
Figures published in annual reports prior
to 2012-13 were based on datasets
managed by Scottish Government
Justice Analytical Services, but it has not
been possible to replicate this analysis
since 2011-12 due to ongoing technical
issues. The most notable difference
between the two data sources is that
the figures shown in this annual report
do not include prisoners classified as
unlawfully at large. The classification of
long-term determinate prisoners recalled
from licence is also different between the
two data sources: these are classified as
long-termers in the Scottish Government
statistics as they are still subject to parole
procedures. On PR2, these prisoners
will be classified as short-termers if the
recalculated sentence on recall is less
than four years.

Components may not add to totals due to
rounding. Remand figures include a small
number of persons awaiting deportation
as these are classified as untried on
PR2. The way the data are held on the
PR2 aggregate tables does not allow an
accurate breakdown by sentence and age.

APPENDIX 3

The following is the agreed position from Operations Directorate with regard to the number and breakdown of absconds and failures
to return for 2014-15.
Absconds and Failures to Return – 2014-15
Barlinnie

Cornton Vale

Greenock

Open Estate

Total

Abscond

1

0

1

1

3

Failure to Return

0

1

0

5

6

1

1

1

6

9
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APPENDIX 5

APPENDIX 6

BREACHES OF DISCIPLINE AND OUTCOME IN PENAL ESTABLISHMENTS BY SEX AND AGE: 2014-15

STAFF NUMBERS AND RECRUITMENT

Adults
Men
Average daily population

Young Offenders

Women

Men

Staff in Post

All

Women

Men

Women

6,800

399

506

26

7,306

425

Disobeying a lawful order

4,034

404

442

53

4,476

457

Possessing an unauthorised/prohibited article/quantity of an article

2,631

273

184

9

2,815

282

Using threatening/abusive/insulting words or behaviour

Breaches of discipline

As at 31 March 2015 there was 4,628 staff in post.
Total

Full Time

Part Time

Disabled
(self-declared)

Female

1,271

1,127

144

72

Male

3,357

3,151

206

206

1,941

279

219

46

2,160

325

Fighting

973

109

342

11

1,315

120

Destroying or damaging property

772

112

278

28

1,050

140

As at March 2015

Chief Executive

Directors

Non-Executive
Directors

Total

Administering, or allowing to be administered, a controlled drug to oneself

895

99

6

3

901

102

Female

0

1

2

3

Assault

615

101

216

11

831

112

Male

1

2

2

5

Disobeying a rule or regulation

489

87

14

6

503

93

Intentionally refusing to work or failing to work properly

367

48

55

3

422

51

Intentionally or recklessly endangering the health or personal safety of
others

As at March 2015

16-24

25-34

35-44

45-54

55-64

Over 65

Total

364

75

56

14

420

89

Female

150

418

314

280

105

<5

1,271

Smoking in an area where smoking is not permitted

274

56

15

2

289

58

Male

192

537

544

1,476

574

34

3,357

Unauthorised absence from or presence in any part of the establishment

216

37

39

7

255

44

Consuming/taking/injecting/ingesting/inhaling or concealing an
unauthorised or prohibited substance

116

23

11

2

127

25

Taking (improperly) any article

104

18

16

1

120

19

SPS Board (which includes all senior civil servants within SPS)

Staff in Post: Age Groups

Staff in Post: Ethnicity
As at March 2015
Ethnicity

Total

Asian – Indian

<5

Asian – Pakistani

6

Asian Other

<5

Black – African

8

Intentionally obstructing any person, other than a prisoner, in the course of
their work

71

8

22

5

93

13

Being disrespectful to any officer, worker or visitor

89

17

3

-

92

17

Sale or delivery of an unauthorised article

61

11

1

-

62

11

Arson

53

8

6

2

59

10

Failing to return from temporary release or comply with a condition of such
release

Mixed – Asian and White

<5

48

14

-

-

48

14

Mixed – Black African & White

<5

Sale or delivery of an article allowed only for prisoners' own use

40

11

-

-

40

11

<5

34

3

-

1

34

4

Mixed – Black Carribbean & White

Committing an indecent or obscene act
Failing without reasonable excuse to open mouth for a visual examination

11

3

-

-

11

3

Mixed Other

<5

Denying an officer access to any part of the prison

4

-

1

1

5

1

Not Advised

329

Escaping or absconding from custody

4

1

-

-

4

1

Not Disclosed

19

Other Ethnic Origin

6

111

23

25

4

136

27

White

4,246

14,317

1,820

1,951

209

16,268

2,029

Attempting/inciting/assisting to commit/attempt to commit any of the
above
Breaches of discipline: total

Leavers: Age Groups

Punishments awarded
Forfeiture of privileges

13,046

1,182

1,698

154

14,744

1,336

Stoppage/deduction from earnings or other cash

9,534

888

1,682

87

11,216

975

Caution

1,630

242

144

23

1,774

265

Confinement to cell

1,171

112

215

19

1,386

131

86

17

6

-

92

17

25,467

2,441

3,745

283

29,212

2,724

2

5

4

8

2

5

Forfeiture of other entitlements
Punishments awarded: total
Breaches of discipline per head of average prison population

As at March 2015

16-24

25-34

35-44

45-54

55-64

Over 65

Total

Female

14

35

12

20

10

<5

95

Male

17

33

13

49

42

16

170

Source:
Data are derived from the Scottish Prison Service PR2 information management system archived aggregate tables.
Notes:
It is possible for more than one punishment to be awarded for one breach of discipline, and conversely one punishment may be given for several
breaches of discipline. Components may not add to total due to rounding. Changes to prison rules were implemented during 2012, headings may
therefore differ slightly from previous years. Headings have been reordered and some have been combined in the interests of clarity.
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APPENDIX 6 (cont’d)

APPENDIX 7

STAFF NUMBERS AND RECRUITMENT

PARLIAMENTARY ACCOUNTABILITY (1 April 2014 – 31 March 2015)

Recruitment

Ministerial Correspondence

Appointed
2014-2015

Male

Female

392

209

183

Ethnic Origin
Asian – Indian

<5

Mixed Other

<5

Not Advised

107

Other Ethnic Origin

<5

White

281

Disabled
(selfdeclared)

Part-time/
Job share

5

15

Recruitment: Age Groups

No. Received

No. of Replies issued
within 17 working days

No. of Replies issued
outwith target date

MSP’s letters for Ministerial reply

3

2

1

MSP’s letters for Chief Executive reply

80

64

16

Total (2014-15)

83

66(80.5%)

17(19.5%)

Total (2013-14)

82

66(80.5%)

16(19.5%)

Total

Ministerial Replies

Chief Executive’s Replies

Category of Response

As at March 2015

16-24

25-34

35-44

45-54

55-64

Over 65

Total

Scottish Parliamentary Questions

Female

72

66

22

18

<5

<5

183

Year

Male

78

76

29

12

13

<5

209

Year ended 31 March 2015

37

1

36

Year ended 31 March 2014

29

5

24

Exceptions
Short-Term
Appointments

Secondments

21

Re-appointment of
Former Civil Servants

5

Transfers into
the Civil Service

4

Surplus Acceptable
Candidates

0

0

Promotion
The following personnel were promoted:
Promoted
2014-2015

Female

Male

Ethnic Origin

318

198

120

Asian Other

<5

Black – African

<5

Mixed – Asian and White

<5

Mixed Other

<5

Not Advised

37

Not Disclosed

<5

White

272

APPENDIX 6

Disabled
(selfdeclared)

Part-Time /
Job Share

7

<5
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APPENDIX 8a

Our ambitions for the lives
of those in our care are
understood by the public
and stakeholders
Our performance is
shaped by research and
reflective practice
OUTCOMES

Our people are motivated
and highly skilled, and our
HR practices support the
delivery of a progressive
prison service

Our governance approach
accords with the
principles published by
CIPFA (Scotland)

Our collaboration with
partners enable the
co-production of
services for prisoners

Our prisoners believe they
are empowered to build
on their assets and have
ambition for the futures

Promoting public
confidence in SPS
Becoming a learning
organisation
Developing a
person-centred,
asset-based approach
Developing a collaborative
outcome focus
Delivering effective and
efficient services
Investing in SPS people

Embedding the new vision
STRATEGIC
PRIORITIES

Help build a safer Scotland – Unlocking Potential – Transforming Lives
VISION
SPS STRATEGY

MISSION                  Providing services that help to transform the lives of people in our care so that they can fulfil their potential and become responsible citizens

Transforming civil and
administrative justice
Increasing public
confidence and
reducing fear and crime
Reducing the harm
from first and other
emergencies
Preventing offending
by young people
Reducing the damaging
impacts of drug and
alcohol problems

Strengthening
community
engagement and
resilience

Widening access to
justice and advancing
law reform
Supporting victims and
witnesses
Enhancing efficiency
Tackling hate crime
and sectarianism
Reducing
re-offending
Reducing crime,
particularly violent and
serious organised crime

PRIORITIES

Our public services respect
the rights and voices of users
Our institutions and process are
effective and efficient
We have high levels of confidence in
justice institutions and processes

Our public services are fair
and accessible

Our people and communities support
and respect each other, exercising
both their rights and responsibilities
We are at low risk of
unintentional harm
We experience low levels
of fear, alarm and distress
We experience low levels
of crime

JUSTICE
OUTCOMES

We have strong resilient and supportive communities
where people take responsibility for their own actions
and how they affect others
We live our lives safe from crime,
disorder and danger

NATIONAL
OUTCOMES

VISION
JUSTICE
STRATEGY
FOR SCOTLAND

PURPOSE
SCOTTISH
GOVERNMENT

Our public services are high quality, continually
improving, efficient and responsive to local
people’s needs

WHAT DO THE OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS MEAN?

Our vision is a justice service that contributes positively to a flourishing Scotland, helping to create an inclusive and respectful society in which
all people and communities live in safety and security, individual and collective rights are supported and disputes are resolved fairly and swiftly

SPS PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK

To focus government and public services on creating a more successful country, with opportunities for all of Scotland to flourish, through
increasing sustainable economic growth

APPENDIX 8b

SCOTTISH PRISON SERVICE PERFORMANCE MODEL 2015/16
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Key Outcomes

KPI

Definition

Related National Outcomes

Related National
Indicators

SPS maintains secure custody and good order
We live our lives safe
from crime, disorder
and danger.
Our public services
are high quality,
continually improving,
efficient and
responsive to local
people’s needs.

1. Escapes

a)  Extreme risk.
b)  All other supervision levels.
c)  Absconds.
d)  Incidents of failure to return.

Reduce re-conviction
rates

2. Assaults

a)  Serious prisoner on staff assaults.
b)  Serious prisoner on prisoner
assaults.
c)  Other prisoner on staff assaults.
d)  Other prisoner on prisoner
assaults.

Reduce re-conviction
rates

SPS cares for prisoners with humanity and offers them appropriate opportunities
3. P
 urposeful
Activity Hours
We live our lives safe
from crime, disorder
and danger.
Our public services
are high quality,
continually improving,
efficient and
responsive to local
people’s needs.

Any supervised and/or structured
activity that contributes to reducing
re-offending.

We realise our full economic
potential with more and better
employment opportunities for our
people.
We are better educated, more
skilled and successful, renowned
for our research and innovation.

4. I ncrease in
Literacy and
Numeracy

a)  The percentage of prisoner
learning hours delivered with a
Our young people are successful
primary aim of developing literacy learners, confident individuals,
skills.
effective contributors and
responsible citizens.
b)  The percentage of prisoner
We live longer, healthier lives.
learning hours delivered with a
primary aim of developing
We have improved the life chances
numeracy skills.
for children, young people and
families at risk.

Reduce reconviction
rates. Improve levels of
Educational attainment.
Increase Physical
Activity

Reduce reconviction
rates. Improve levels of
Educational attainment.

SPS maintains secure custody and good order

We live our lives safe
from crime, disorder
and danger.
Our public services
are high quality,
continually improving,
efficient and
responsive to local
people’s needs

5.  Vocational
qualifications

a)  Number of vocational and
employment-related qualifications.
b)  Number of vocational and
employment-related qualifications
at SCQF level 5 or above.

6. I ncrease in
employability

The percentage of prisoners
accessing JobCentre Plus’
pre-release service who move into
employment, education or training
within 13 weeks of release.

7.  Reduced or
stabilised drug
misuse

The number of prisoners testing
positive on entry compared with the
number testing positive on exit.

8. I ntegrated Case
Management
case
conferences
with social work
contributions

We realise our full economic
potential with more and better
employment opportunities for our
people.
We are better educated, more
skilled and successful, renowned
for our research and innovation.
Our young people are successful
learners, confident individuals,
effective contributors and
responsible citizens.

We live longer, healthier lives.
The percentage of case conferences
We have improved the life chances
held for prisoners to be released to
for children, young people and
Scotland where the community
families at risk.
Criminal Justice Social Worker
attended.

Reduce reconviction
rates. Improve levels of
Educational attainment.
Improving the skill profile
of the population.
Reduce reconviction
rates. Improving the skill
profile of the population.
Reduce reconviction
rates. Reducing the
number of individuals
with problem drug use.
Reduce reconviction
rates. Reducing crime
victimisation rates.

SPS offers value for money to the taxpayer
Our public services
are high quality,
continually improving,
efficient and
responsive to local
people’s needs.

9. Average annual
cost
per prisoner
place

We value and enjoy our
built and natural
environment and
protect it and enhance
it for future
generations.

10.  Reducing
Carbon
Emissions

Improve people’s
perceptions of the
quality of public services.

From 2010, a 20% reduction in
carbon emissions by 2015 with
anticipated savings over the 5 year
plan equating to 45,335 tonnes of
CO2, and £8.1m.

We reduce the local and global
environmental impact of our
consumption and production.

Reduce Scotland’s
Carbon Footprint.
Reduce waste
generated.
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APPENDIX 9

APPENDIX 10

COURT CUSTODY AND PRISONER ESCORT SERVICE

SPS SUSTAINABILITY ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT

CORE VOLUMES
(Excluding Bail to Establishment)

SPS Annual Sustainability Performance
Report 2014-15

Apr-14

May-14

Jun-14

Jul-14

Aug-14 Sep-14 Oct-14 Nov-14 Dec-14

Jan-15

Feb-15

Mar-15

2014-15
Total

2013-14
Total

Police Station to
Court

6,422

6,656

6,827

6,895

6,185

6,993

6,584

6,092

6,868

6,200

6,128

7,028

78,878

81,707

Prison to Court

4,449

4,575

4,262

4,471

4,240

4,730

4,786

4,139

3,991

4,181

4,020

4,685

52,529

51,523

Mental Health
Hospitals to
Court

38

31

147

438

462

54

63

41

46

64

71

84

1,539

626

Court Others

318

304

341

306

280

282

341

290

230

241

323

354

3,610

3,922

Total Core
Services

11,227

11,566

11,577

12,110

11,167 12,059

11,774

10,562

11,135

10,686

10,542

12,151

136,556

137,778

Total External
Services

2,256

2,321

2,237

2,535

2,323

2,407

2,123

1,450

1,898

1,802

2,362

25,981

27,907

Total Core
Volume

13,483

13,887

13,814

14,645

13,490 14,326

14,181

12,685

12,585

12,584

12,344

14,513

162,537

165,685

Total Non Core
Volume

1,459

1,499

1,367

1,497

1,449

1,516

1,381

1,502

1,316

1,297

1,454

17,230

15,563

Total
Movements

14,942

15,386

15,181

16,142

14,939 15,819

15,697

14,066

14,087

13,900

13,641

15,967

179,767

181,248

% delivered to
court on time

85%

79%

81%

84%

85%

83%

87%

88%

82%

87%

89%

84%

84%

85%

Number of
Prisoners
Unlawfully at
Large

0

1

1

2

0

2

1

0

0

1

0

0

8

9

2,267

1,493

1. Introduction
Welcome to the Scottish Prison Service
Sustainability Performance Report for
2014-15, which provides an overview
commentary of our carbon emissions
performance in the reported year along with
an overview of our forward plans.
Our Sustainability Report comprises a table
of financial and nonfinancial information
covering our Greenhouse Gas emissions
(GHG), energy, waste, water and other finiteresource consumption for the financial year,
2014-15. The emissions result from public
sector prisons in Scotland and those
operated under the contract by private
sector operators (HMP Addiewell and HMP
Kilmarnock).
The Climate Change (Scotland) Act 2009
sets clear and ambitious national targets for
Greenhouse Gas emissions reduction,
including a 42% reduction by 2020.
Part 4 of The Act also places particular duties
on public sector organisations to tackle
climate change, including:
>

>

That a public body must, in exercising its
functions, act in the way best calculated
to contribute to the delivery of emissions
reduction targets.
In the way best calculated to help deliver
any statutory climate change adaptation
programme.

>

In a way that it considers is most
sustainable.

The SPS recognises the part that we can play
in contributing to the Scottish Government’s
objective of reducing Greenhouse Gas
emissions in the period up to 2020.
The current SPS Carbon Management
Strategy has a target to reduce overall total
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions by a
relative 20% over five years from 2010 to
2015, based on the 2008-09 baseline year,
and measured against business as usual
(BAU) emissions. This target equates to a 7%
absolute reduction in emissions.

Developing and participate in recycling
schemes, using, where appropriate,
recycled goods and materials.

>

Promoting sustainable travel.

2. SPS Headline Measures
Summary 2014-15
Our 2014-15 GHG emissions, summarised
in Table 1 have reduced by 8.5% in
absolute terms and by 21.6% relative to
BAU, and has exceeded our Carbon
Management Strategy, five-year reduction
target.

Normalisation

Our Low Carbon Vision
In addition to the drivers for change noted
above, our Sustainability Policy commits
SPS to make changes to how we use
energy and to our other activities that
generate Greenhouse Gases and
contribute to climate change, including:
>

>

Taking all reasonable measures to
monitor and manage our consumption
and use of energy, water and other
finite resources and materials.

>

Operating in such a way as to minimise
energy consumption.

>

Operating in such a way as to minimise
water consumption.

Table 2 outlines our normalised
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions
performance results using two key SPS
factors;
> 	 Total gross operational floor area

(GHG/m2).
>

Daily average prisoner population
(GHG/Prisoner).

These factors can have a direct and
influential bearing on our GHG emissions
and used to compare our performance
between years.

> 	 Reducing the volume of waste

materials generated from our
operations and minimising waste
through improved specifications,
working practices and recycling.

Table 1

APPENDIX 9

Area

Performance 2014-15

Status against previous year
(2013-14)

Status against baseline year
(2008-09)

Greenhouse
Gas emissions
(GHG)

Total GHG emissions have decreased by 8.5%
compared to the baseline year, 2008-09

-3%

-8.5%

Energy

Total energy consumption has decreased by 7%
compared to the baseline year, 2008-09

-4%

-7%

Waste

Operational waste sent to landfill has decreased
by 46% compared to the baseline year, 2008-09

-18%

-46%

Water

Water consumption has reduced by 18%
compared to the baseline year, 2008-09

-2%

-18%
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4. Energy

Table 2
Area

Performance 2014-15

Status against previous year
(2013-14)

Status against baseline year
(2008-09)

100.9

-3%

-20%

5.9

-1%

-7%

GHG (kg) /m2
GHG (tonnes)/
Prisoner

3. Greenhouse Gas
Emissions (GHG)
Table 3 provides a breakdown of our GHG
emissions this year, along with historical
performance going back to our baseline
year 2008-09. For definitions of scope 1, 2
& 3 emissions, see section 11 of this report.
The SPS published its Carbon Management
Strategy (CMS) in 2010. The CMS stated
our aspiration to achieve a reduction in our
Greenhouse Gas emissions (GHG) of 20%

relative to business as usual scenario and a
7% absolute reduction, based on the
2008/09 baseline, by 2015. Our
performance for 2014/15 has been our
most successful year since we began to
measure our GHG emissions and overall
SPS have exceeded the respective targets.

Our revised CMS shall set out details of our
plans for reducing GHG emissions over the
next five years to 2020. The CMS will set
out a programme of carbon reduction
projects, identify responsibilities estimated
budget and resources requirements
required to deliver the strategy. It will also
reflect the likely changes in size, complexity
Looking forward, it is our intention to
and nature of our prisoner population and
review our CMS, with the aim to further
our estate. We aim to complete and publish
reduce our GHG emissions and commit to a our new CMS by the summer of 2015.
new target that supports the wider
Scottish Government aims and objectives.

Table 4 outlines our energy consumption
and highlights that our overall energy
consumption has reduced this year by 7%
when compared to our baseline year,
2008-09.
The overall reduction is primarily due to a
reduction in our use of fossil fuels (natural
gas & oil), through the redevelopment of
our estate and investment in replacing
fossil fuel heating sources with low carbon
technologies and renewables.
We recognise that reducing energy
demand, becoming more energy efficient
and reducing our reliance on fossil fuels
will be key factors that will enable SPS to
reduce energy consumption over the
longer term.

Table 3

Non-Financial
Indicators
(tonnes CO2e)

2008-09

2009-10

2010-11

2011-12

2012-13

2013-14

2014-15

Target emissions

49,631

48,956

48,392

47,843

47,309

46,792

46,269

Total gross emissions
– (scope 1, 2 & 3)

49,631

48,777

50,005

49,110

49,965

46,701

45,409

Gross emissions
scope 1

21,113

Gross emissions
scope 2

17,321

Gross emissions
scope 3

11,197

20,105
17,518
11,154

21,396
17,120
11,489

19,905
17,929
11,276

21,811
17,798
10,356

18,958
17,272
10,471

Greenhouse Gas Emissions – Graphical Analysis

Energy
consumption
(million kWh)

2009-10

2010-11

2011-12

2012-13

2013-14

2014-15

Electricity

39.5

39.8

39.3

41.6

41.4

40.5

40.0

Electricity:
self-generation

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.0

1.3

1.7

110.7

108.1

113.8

110.7

120.4

106.5

102.6

Gas
LPG

0.8

0.6

0.6

0.06

0.0

0.0

0.0

Biomass

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.00

0.0

0.7

1.5

18,092
Financial indicators
(£k)

7.7

8.3

10.9

6.2

5.4

3.9

1.8

Total energy

158.7

156.7

164.6

158.5

168.2

152.9

147.5

CRC-related
expenditure

0

0

0

433

460

429

532

7,818

6,691

5,880

6,724

7,810

7,486

7,321

Total SPS energy
expenditure (£k)

Energy Graphical Analysis

Annual total CO2e emissions

Annual energy consumption

60,000

Gross emissions
scope 2

30,000

Gross emissions
scope 3

20,000

Electricity:
self-generation

140
million kWhs

Tonnes

160

Gross emissions
scope 1

40,000

120

Gas

100
80

LPG

60
Biomass

40
20

10,000
Target emissions
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Electricity

180

50,000

0

2008-09

2009-10

2010-11

SPS successfully installed a 250 kWp solar
PV ground system at HMP Glenochil,
which will produce over 200,000kWhrs of
clean, renewable electricity, which will
contribute to meeting the energy demand
of the prison for at least 20 years. Further
projects are proposed to install solar PV
installations in four other prisons during
2015-16.

2008-09

Gas-Oil

18,065

9,252

Replacement heating boilers and BEMS
controls upgrades are underway at several
sites, including HMP Greenock, HMP
Dumfries, HMP Glenochil, HMYOI Polmont.

Renewable technologies will also continue
to play a prominent role within the prison
estate. During 2014-15 the SPS produced
1.7m kWh of renewable electricity from a
range of technologies, including solar PV
systems and Combined Heat & Power
systems.

Table 4
Energy

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Several energy efficiency projects have
been successfully implemented over the
last year, with more projects identified for
the next 12 months, including the
replacement of older and less efficient
lighting systems with LED Lighting. A
number of contracts have been completed
to replace lighting with low energy LED
equivalents and further projects are
proposed. Rather than use all brand new
fitting replacements, we have been able to
adapt many existing fittings to operate
with LEDs saving on capital costs and
time.

2011-12

2012-13

2013-14

0

Gas-Oil
2008-09

2009-10

2010-11

2011-12

2012-13

2013-14

2014-15

2014-15
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5. Water

6. Waste and Recycling

Table 5 outlines our water consumption
performance.

>

Water consumption has reduced by 18%
compared to our baseline year, 2008-09.
This year, SPS continued to record water
reduction across our estate.

>

Our new and redeveloped prisons have >
an extensive network of rainwater
harvesting systems, which is used to
flush in-cell toilets.

We reduce the risk of uncontrolled
water use by installing motion-sensor
operated taps and showers, low-flush
WCs and low-flow showers.

We also ensure that all of our new
buildings/refurbishments use water
efficiently by incorporating clauses
within our contracts that specify water
efficient components and controls.

We have plans to complete an
extensive survey of the water mains
serving HMP Barlinnie, which will
identify condition and any erroneous
water consumption at our largest
prison.

>

Table 5
Water

2008-09

2009-10

2010-11

2011-12

2012-13

2013-14

2014-15

Water consumption (1000m )

840.3

767.5

784.8

677.4

783.9

702.1

687.5

Total SPS water expenditure (£k)

1,678

1,571

1,629

1,193

1,651

1,526

1,598

3

Table 6 summarises our waste and
recycling performance.

> 	 Identification of the range of projects

During 2014-15, the SPS ran a series of
>
training and knowledge transfer
workshops for staff from every prison
attending. Training workshops were
delivered during November and March,
>
and attended by staff directly involved in
the delivery of waste and recycling
services, and represented each SPS prison
as well as SPS Headquarters (FM Services,
Estates and Procurement).
> 	
The various sessions identified a number
of key deliverables for SPS, including:
>

Identifying the ideal vision for waste
management across the SPS estate
as informed by staff.

>

>

in action across the SPS estate.
Discussion of each project highlighting
the benefits and opportunities of each
project.
Identifying projects and skillsets,
which each establishment wish to
explore in further detail so to develop
similar within their own prison.

Developing opportunities for
establishments with lower levels of
knowledge, experience or skills in
certain projects to seek support from
establishments with higher levels of
knowledge, experience and skills.

> 	 Identification of challenges to waste

management in the SPS estate.
>

Understanding differing levels of staff
knowledge and experience regarding
each project.

Action plans for each prison detailing
how to proceed in implementing their
chosen projects.

Demonstrating linkages between
establishments with common
interests in certain projects and skills.

Table 6
Water Graphical Analysis

Waste
Annual water consumption

900.0
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400.0

Financial indicators
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2010-11

2011-12
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Landfill

3,957
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7. Transport
Table 7 summarises our overall workrelated travel and transport CO2e
emissions performance.
Emissions from travel and transport have
decreased by 10% compared to 2013-14.
Last year there was an increase in journeys
associated with the construction of our
new prison, HMP & YOI Grampian. With the
opening of the new facility, such journeys
have reduced.

We also have a range of electric utility
vehicles at four of our prisons, which will
cater for routine site transportation needs.

Our prisoner escort services provider also
recorded a reduction in emissions
associated with prisoner transfer services
during 2014-15.

A staff Cycle to Work Scheme has also been
introduced.

Our leased business fleet now includes
all new vehicles, which have markedly
improved CO2e emissions performance
compared with our previous vehicles.
Two new zero emission electric vehicles are
also now part of the SPS fleet. The cars are
based at SPS HQ, and our Staff Training
College respectively.

Table 7
Transport

2008-09

2009-10

2010-11

2011-12

2012-13

2013-14

2014-15

Total emissions (tCO2e)

3,423

3,340

3,283

3,120

3,127

3,374

3,076

Rail and Air (scope 3) (tCO2e)

71

62

51

52

29

25

68

Business (scope 3) (tCO2e)

3,124

3,051

3,004

2,802

2,818

3,030

2,666

SPS fleet (scope 1) (tCO2e)

228

227

228

267

280

319

343

SPS expenditure on business travel,
official travel and fleet (£k)

505

488

442

539

558

Transport Graphical Analysis
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2008-09

2009-10

2010-11

2011-12
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2013-14
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654

639

8. Sustainable
Procurement

Sustainability Impact Assess Mapping

The Procurement Reform (Scotland) Act
intends to create a Sustainability Duty.
SPS has undertaken work to sustainability
Supported Businesses
impact assess and map the range of
SPS has taken steps to incorporate the
goods, services and works typically
three needs of the general equality duty
purchased by SPS. We will continue to
into the delivery of our services by actively
develop this methodology based on the
promoting the use of Supported
Scottish Government Marrakech
Businesses within SPS. This aligns with the
approach. We will roll out further training
wider Scottish Government promotion
in this area and will undertake further case
and national procurement policy.
study work with Zero Waste Scotland
Supported Businesses employ people at
during 2015-16.
disadvantage in the open labour market
workplace – the official definition of
Enterprise & Employability
Supported Business being “where more
SPS continues to develop an Enterprise and
than 50% of the workers are disabled
Employability with the intent of developing
persons who by reason of the nature of
links with employers willing to work with
their disability are unable to take up work
those in custody or post liberation.
in the open labour market”.
We have appointed a Governor in Charge
as Supported Business Champion and
sought to build links between Supported
Businesses and SPS’s Transforming Lives
agenda, with the aspiration being that
some offenders potentially secure
employment with Supported Businesses.
We have seen a significant year-on-year
increase in SPS purchases from Supported
Businesses and this totalled approximately
£111k in 2014-15.
As an example of the many actions SPS
is taking to increase awareness amongst
buyers in regard to what is available from
Supported Businesses, on 3 June 2014,
in conjunction with British Association of
Supported Employment (BASE), SPS
hosted the Supported Businesses Open
Day at HMP Open Estate. Over 20
Supported Businesses and associated
organisations were invited and over 40
representatives from across SPS, Police
Scotland and Scottish Government
attended. A further event was hosted by
HMP Low Moss in March 2015 to promote
offenders as potential employees to
Supported Businesses and other
employers.
The recent Public Consultation on the
new Procurement Regulations outlines
proposal to alter the criteria of a
Supported Business to 30% of the
workers being disadvantaged persons
who, for various reasons, are unable to
take up work in the open labour market.
SPS are supportive of this revision and
have responded to the Public Consultation
on the new Procurement Regulations to
promote specific consideration in the
Regulations of those in custody being
“disadvantaged persons”.

The intent is to create better pathways
for the skills developed in prisons to have
relevance to employers and to engage
private, third or public sector organisations
to provide enterprise in the prison. This
provides up skilling and employability
opportunities to those in custody.
Ultimately, SPS wish to see those in
custody being a valuable source of trained,
work-ready employees. We have
continued to develop a number of
pathfinder projects in 2014/15 and will
continue this work in the year ahead.

9. Governance

Our major private sector service providers
custodial services, prisoner escort
services and construction works also
provide us with sustainability
management reports as part of ongoing
contract performance monitoring.

11. Report Format
This report has been prepared using the
format and guidance recommended by
Scottish Government: PUBLIC SECTOR
SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING – Guidance
on the preparation of Annual Sustainability
Reports.
Sources of GHG emissions are broken
down into three scopes, as noted below
and which forms the boundary of our
emissions.
Scope one – Direct consumption of gas
and other fossil fuels used for heating our
buildings and fuel used to operate our fleet
vehicles.
Scope two – Purchased electricity
generation used for our buildings.
Scope three – Emissions comprise:
>

Work-related travel and transport,
including prisoner transfer and escort
services.

>

Operational waste and recycling.

>

Water consumption.

> 	 Major contracted out services

– operation of Private Prisons.
> 	 Major construction.

The Chief Executive chairs the SPS Carbon
Management Strategy (CMS) Programme
Board and includes SPS Directors and
12. Future Climate Change
trade union representation. The group
meets regularly to review progress and
Policy
delivery of the CMS.
The Scottish Government proposes to
make an order under Section 46 of the
We have a support network of Carbon
Climate Change (Scotland) Act 2009
Champions based at every prison who
requiring specified public bodies to
have a key role in promoting and
prepare annual reports on compliance
supporting our wider corporate
with climate change duties. The order
sustainability objectives and targets.
aims to:
Local recycling and estates management
> Consolidate climate change
officers as well as HQ based staff provide
information from the public sector.
support to the local Carbon Champions.
> Introduce standard methodology to
Each year, all prisons produce site specific
improve data consistency.
sustainability performance reports.
> Encourage continuous improvement
and transparency.

10. Specialist Partnership

> Improve board engagement and
We recognise that we must work with the
leadership action and inform Scottish
wider community, including specialists and
Government strategic reporting and
our supply chain to deliver our low carbon
future policy/support.
vision. We have a track record of working
Subject to the above, SPS will adopt the
in partnership with charity groups,
Sustainable Scotland Network, The Energy new reporting template for future Annual
Sustainability Reports.
Savings Trust and The Carbon Trust.
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kg CO2e/kWh

Rail
(passenger km)
kg CO2e/
passenger km

kg CO2e/kWh
0.5375
Refuse Municipal to
Landfill (tonnes)

kg CO2e/tonne
289.8
Flights
(passenger km)
kg CO2e/
passenger km
0.2932

Units
2014/15
Waste

Units
2014/15
Travel
Units
2014/15

0.0474

21.0

kg CO2e/tonne

Organic Food
& Drink AD
(tonnes)

0.18497

Natural Gas
(kWh)

Grid Electricity
(kWh)

Fuel source

0.1855

kg CO2e/km

Car – diesel
(passenger km)

21.0

kg CO2e/tonne

Paper &
Board (Mixed)
Recycling
(tonnes)

0.27212

kg CO2e/kWh

Gas oil
(kWh)

0.1939

kg CO2e/km

Car – petrol
(passenger km)

21.0

0.2509

kg CO2e/km

Van –
diesel (km)

21.0

kg CO2e/tonne

Glass Recycling
(tonnes)

WEEE (Mixed)
Recycling
(tonnes)
kg CO2e/tonne

2.6024

kg CO2e/litre

Diesel
(litres)

0.21451

kg CO2e/kWh

LPG
(kWh)

UK Government conversion factors for Company Reporting – DEFRA Carbon Factors

13. Carbon Emission Factors used in this Report

0.1095

kg CO2e/
passenger km

Bus
(passenger km)

21.0

kg CO2e/tonne

Plastics
(Average)
Recycling
(tonnes)

2.1914

kg CO2e/litre

Petrol
(litres)

0.2188

kg CO2e/
passenger km

Taxi
(passenger km)

21.0

0.1161

kg CO2e/
passenger km

Ferry (average
all passenger)

1.4

kg CO2e/tonne

Construction
(Average)
Recycling
(tonnes)

Metal Cans
(Mixed) & Metal
Scrap Recycling
(tonnes)
kg CO2e/tonne

0.7085

kg CO2e/m3

Water –
Treatment (m3)

0.3441

kg CO2e/m3

Water –
Supply (m3)
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